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Ben F.Pierce Gore (SBI12851))
PRATT & ASSOCIATES

1871 The Alameda, Suite 425
San Jose, CA 95126

Telephone: (408) 369-0800
Fax: (408) 369-0752
pgore@prattattorneys.com

D’Juana Parks (pro hac vice)

PROVOST % UMPHREY LAW FIRM, LLP
490 Park Street

Beaumont, TX 77701

Telephone: (409) 835-6000

Fax: (409) 813-8647

dparks@pulf.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION

ROBERT E. FIGY, individually and on | CaSeN0- 3:15-CV-0482¢ TEH
behalf of all others similarly situated, FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION AND
Plaintiff REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT
’ FOR EQUITABLE AND INJUNCTIVE
VS RELIEF

LIFEWAY FOODS INC., Action Filed: October 17, 2013

Defendar.

Plaintiff, through his undersigned attorneys, bsitigis lawsuit against Defendant Lifew
Foods, Inc. (“Lifeway”) as to his own acts, uporrgmnal knowledge, and as to all other mat
upon information and belief. In order to remedy tharm arising from Defendant’s illeg
conduct which has resulted in unjust profits, RIibrings this action on behalf of himself a
(1) a nationwide class of consumers and/or, inalternative, (2) a statewide class of Califor

consumers both of whom, within the last four yeamstchased any Lifeway’s products:
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labeled with the ingredient “evaporated cane juiceferred to herein as “Misbranded Fa

Products”)*

DEFINITIONS
1. “Class Period” is October 17, 2009 to the present.
1. “Purchased Products” are those products that werehased by Plaintiff durin

the Class Period. Plaintiff BOB FIGY purchased &g Lowfat Peach Kefir, Organic Lowf

Pomegranate/Acai Kefir, Organic Lowfat RaspberryiKéonfat Strawberry Kefir and Nonfat

Raspberry Kefir. Pictures of the Purchased Pradaiet attached at Exhibits 1-5.

2. “Substantially Similar Products” are the Purchas&dducts and Defendant
other products that bear the identical unlawful dledjal label statement as that found on
Purchased Products. LIFEWAY uses the unlawful kbebntaining the unlawful ter
“Evaporated Cane Juice” (sometimes “ECJ”) for lafl Class products as is more fully descri
below. ECJ is a term which is illegal to use toaliée “sugar” or “dried cane sirup” on foc
labels under California law.

3. “Misbranded Food Products” are the Purchased Ptedaied the Substantial

Similar Products identified herein.

4. Upon information and belief, these Purchased Prtsdaied Substantially Similar

Products are Lifeway’s products that were soldruthe class period and listed below in T3
1. Plaintiff reserves the right to supplement figsif evidence is adduced during discovery
show that other Lifeway’s products had labels whialate the same provisions of the Sherr
Law and have the same label representations aButahased Products. Table 1 below lists

Purchased Products and the Substantially SimiladRits that are Misbranded:

LIFEWAY MISBRANDED PRODUCTS - TABLE 1

LIFEWAY Products
*QOrganic Lowfat Peach Ke
*QOrganic Lowfat Pomegranate/Acai K¢
*QOrganic Lowfat Raspberry Ke

! This case includes all of the “Purchased Produatsf the “Substantially Similar Products”
defined herein.

First Amended Class Action and Representative
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*Lowfat Strawberry Kefi

*Nonfat Raspberry Kef

Organic Lowfat Blueberry Kef

Organic Lowfat Strawberries n'ream Kefir

Organic Whole Milk Strawberries n’ Cree
Kefir

Organic Whole Milk Wildberries Ket

Organic Green Kefi- Pomegranate Ac:
Bluebern

Green Kefir- Kiwi Passion Fru

ProBu(s— Goc-berry Pie Organic Kel
for Kids

ProBugs- Orange Creamy rawler Organic
Kefir for Kids

ProBugs— Sublime Slime Lime Organic Kef
for Kids

ProBugs— Strawnana Split Organic Kefir fc
Kids

Frozen Kefir— Tart and Tangy Origin

Frozen Kefir— Tart and Tangy Mang

Frozen Kefir— Tart and Tangy Pomegran

Frozen Kefir— Tart and Tangy Strawbel

Frozen Kefir— Tart and Tang- Chocolat:

Frozen Kefir— Tart and Tangy Duice ¢
Leche

Frozen Kefir— Tart and Tangy Pumpk

ProBugs- Frozen- GooBerry Pi

ProBugs- Frozen- Orange Creamy Craw!

ProBugs- Frozen- Strawnana Sp!

Lassi Mang

Lassi Strawberi

Lowfat Pomegranate Ke

Lowfat Raspberry Kef

Lowfat Peach Kef

Lowfat Strawberr-Banana Kefi

Lowfat Blueberry Kefi

Lowfat Cherry Kefi

Lowfat Madagascar Vanilla Ke

Lowfat Mango Kefi

Lowfat Cappuccino Ket

Lowfat Chocolate Truffle Kef

Lowfat Coconut Chia Kef

Nonfat Blueberry Kefi

Nonfat Strawberry Kef

Nonfat Strawberr-Banana Kefi

Nonfat Strawberry Greek Style Ke

-3- Case No. CV 3:13-CV-4828-TEH
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Helios Organic Greek Nonfat Strawberry
Honey Kefil

Helios Organic Greek Nonfat Raspberry
Honey Kefil

Helios Organic Greek Nonfat Coconut
Honey Kefil

Helios Organic Greek Nonfat Vanilla Ke

Helios Organic Nonfa
Pomegranate/Blueberry & Honey Kz
Helios Nutrition Organic Nonfat Kefir wit
Omega 3 - Passion Fru

Helio Nutrition Organic Greek Nonfat Kel-
Strawberry & Hone

Helios Nutrition Organic Nonfat Kefir wit
Omega 3— Pomegranate / Ac

Helios Nutrition Organic Greek Nonfat Pe
& Honey Kefir.

Honey Swirl Greek Style F-Yo

Chocolde Swirl Greek Style F-Yo
Blood Orange Greek Style F-Yo

*Purchased Products
The issue in this case is the label violations @ndiisrepresentations on the labels of th
products. The violations and/or misrepresentatjpersain to the term “ECJ” (evaporated c:
juice) included on these labels. Plaintiff assénts use of the term “ECJ” is in violation of t

following regulations and/or statutes:

21 CFR 101.30; 21 CFR 101.4(a)(1); 21 CFR 101.2())(21 CFR 102.5; 21 CFR 131.200; 2
CFR 184.1854; 21 CFR 1.21; 21 CFR 120.1 (a); 21 C6®R130

Cal. Health & Safety Code

§110100; §110390; §110395; §110398; §110400; §13,(&NL0660; §110705; §110710;
§110725; §110760; §110770; 8110775; 8110825

Cal. Food & Agriculture Code
§836671; 8836672; §836673; 21 USC 343

SUMMARY OF THE CASE

5. Plaintiff's case has two facets. The first is thECL unlawful” part. Plaintiff's

first cause of action is brought pursuant to thiawful prong of California’s Unfair Competitio

Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 (“UCL")See,First Cause of Action below. Plaintiff

alleges that Defendant packages and labels then&ed Products in violation of Californiz

First Amended Class Action and Representative
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Sherman Law which adopts, incorporates — and istickd — to the federal Food Drug
Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. § 304t seq.(“FDCA"). These violations render the Purcha

Products and Substantially Similar Products “misteti”. Under California law, a food prodd

ct

that is misbranded cannot legally be manufactumdlertised, distributed, held or sold.

Misbranded products cannot be legally sold, posskdsave no economic value, and are leg
worthless. Indeed, the sale, purchase or possesdianisbranded food is a criminal act
California and the FDA even threatens food commamigh seizure of misbranded produc
This “misbranding” — standing alone without anyeghtions of deception by Defendant ot
than the failure to disclose as per its duty, withihe material fact that the product was illegal
without review of or reliance on the labels by Ridi — gives rise to Plaintiff's first cause

action under the UCL unlawful prong and is a stiattility claim.

6. The second aspect to this case is the “deceptiaet. Plaintiff alleges that the

labels on the Purchased Products and the Subd#tar8ianilar Products — aside from bei
unlawful under the Sherman Law — are also mislepdateceptive, unfair and fraudule
Plaintiff describes these labels and the ways irclwthey are misleading. Plaintiff alleges t
he reviewed the labels on the respective Purch@sedlicts that he purchased, reasonably r¢
in substantial part on the labels, and was thedelzgived, in deciding to purchase these prod
Moreover, the very fact that Defendant sold sutdgdl Purchased Products and Substant
Similar Products and did not disclose this factémsumers is a deceptive act in and of its
Plaintiff would not have purchased a product tlsaillegal to own or possess. Had Defend
informed Plaintiff of this fact, there would havedn no purchases. Plaintiff relied upon
Defendant’'s implied representation that Defendamtteducts were legal that arose fr
Defendant’s material omission of the facts thapitsducts were in fact, actually illegal.

7. Plaintiff did not know, and had no reason to kntivat Defendant’s products we

misbranded under the Sherman Law and that the pr®diwore food labeling claims, despi

failing to meet the requirements to make those flabeling claims. Similarly, Plaintiff did ng
know, and had no reason to know, that Defendantiduycts were false and misleading.

8. Identical California and federal laws require tfuthaccurate information on th

First Amended Class Action and Representative
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labels of packaged foods. The law is clear: mistiednfood cannot legally be sold, posses
has no economic value and is legally worthlesscliagers of misbranded food are entitled
refund of their purchase price.

9. Identical California and federal laws regulate tomtent of labels on packag

food. The FDCA of requirements were adopted byGhgfornia Sherman Law. Under both the

Sherman Law and FDCA section 403(a), food is “nasbed” if “its labeling is false @
misleading in any particular,” or if it does notntain certain information on its label or
labeling. 21 U.S.C. § 343(a).

10. Under the FDCA, the term “false” has its usual neguof “untruthful,” while the|

=

term “misleading” is a term of art. Misbrandingaches not only false claims, but also those

claims that might be technically true, but stillsheiading. If any one representation in
labeling is misleading, the entire food is misbmreghdand no other statement in the labeling cu
misleading statement.

11. Under California law, a food product that is “miabded” cannot legally b
manufactured, advertised, distributed, held or.sdisbranded products cannot be legally s
possessed, have no economic value, and are legadtiiless. Plaintiff and members of the ClI
who purchased these products paid an unwarranésaiypm for these products.

12. Lifeway’'s website,www.kefir.com is incorporated into the label for each

Defendant’s respective products. The Purchaseduet®@nd the Substantially Similar Prody
contain the website address. According to the F&#l as a matter of law, the Lifeway web:s
constitutes the labeling of any product bearing¢heeb addresses.

13.  If a manufacturer, like Lifeway, is going to makelaim on a food label, the lab
must meet certain legal requirements that helpwoess make informed choices and ensure
they are not misled and that label claims are tulitccurate, and backed by scientific evider

As described more fully below, Defendant has soilddpcts that are misbranded and

the
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are

worthless because (i) the labels violate the Sherb@av and, separately, (ii) Defendant made,

and continues to make, false, misleading and deeegiaims on its labels.

14.  Plaintiff brings this action under California lawhich is identical to federal lav
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because of Defendant’s food labeling practices whi@ both (i) unlawful and (ii) deceptive and

misleading to consumer because they make unlawidl raisleading “evaporated cane juic
claims;
BACKGROUND
15. LIFEWAY products, with their distinctive packagirand array of various foo
products, are available at most major supermatkans from coast to coast. Lifeway knows t
many of its consumers wish to eat, and/or to p@vadtheir families, a diet comprised of natu
foods and foods that lack added sugar. Lifewagpgsizes that natural and health claims d
sales, and actively promotes the naturalness aatthhbenefits of its products. LIFEWA

claims that “We’re here to improve the health of oustomers.” In addition, Lifeway marke

en

hat
ral
five
Y

ts

Kefir products specifically for children — the “FBogs” line for younger children and “ProBugs

Blast” line for older children and claims “It's mittous, naturally” without mentioning the add
sugar. While declaring their products improve healtlFEWAY has unlawfully utilized thg
illegal term “Evaporated Cane Juice” and/or “Orga@iane Juice” on its packaging and hid
from its consumers the fact that “sugar” is in mahjts products.

16. LIFEWAY uses the term “Evaporated Cane Juice” tkends products appe
healthier than products that contain “sugar” agngnedient. This illegal label is used to incre
sales and to charge a premium by making a proeech $iealthier than it is in reality.

Plaintiff BOB FIGY purchased the following LIFEWApNroducts:

Organic Lowfat Peach Kefir

Organic Lowfat Pomegranate/Acai Kefir
Organic Lowfat Raspberry Kefir

Nonfat Strawberry Kefir

Nonfat Raspberry Kefir

agrwnE

17.  Prior to purchasing these products, Plaintiff réaal labels on these products &

saw that the labels included the term “EvaporatadeCJuice” as one of the “INGREDIENTS$

Plaintiff desired to purchase healthy food produite®e of added or excessive sugar in the lowy
Kefir cultured milk smoothies he purchased. Thgradients on the labels of the LIFEWAY
products Plaintiff purchased appear to be heaftgyedients, including such verbage as “cultu

organic lowfat milk” and “organic .... juice conceatte.” Plaintiff, as any health-consciq

First Amended Class Action and Representative
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consumer would likely agree, believed the prodbhetpurchased were products that were n
with natural and organic ingredients. Plaintiffl diot realize that these products contained a
sugar from the deceptive verbage “evaporated aaoe,] a term Plaintiff reviewed when readi
the label. Plaintiff read and relied upon this leasling and deceptive language, “Evapord
Cane Juice,” when making his decision to purchdme Kefir cultured milk smoothies |
purchased. If not for this misrepresentation,RiiiBOB FIGY would not have purchased the
products. Plaintiff therefore suffered injury as lost money buying LIFEWAY’s deceptive
labeled smoothies when he could have chosen tohasecalternative products that did

contain sugar or to refrain from buying the produat all. Plaintiff specifically relied on t
products’ ingredient labeling when he made his sleni to purchase the products listed ab

and attached hereto as Exhibits 1 — 5. These pteduere mislabeled food products and, :

1ade

ded

ated
e
bSe
y
not
e
ove

S a

result, Plaintiff suffered injury. Plaintiff furdr viewed and relied upon various representations

and information provided in LIFEWAY'’s websiteaww.kefir.com which claims that LIFEWAY

Kefir is “loaded with nutritious ingredients” ancttydeceives and misleads consumers witl
labels.

18. Exemplar labels of the products purchased by RiaB®OB FIGY are provided in]
Exhibits 1-5. These exhibits are true, correct acdurate photographs of LIFEWAY’s E(
package labels.

19. At all times during the Class Period, the aboveetisLIFEWAY products liste
“Evaporated Cane Juice” as an ingredient.

20. The ingredient LIFEWAY lists as “Evaporated Cane&duis not derived from

fruit or vegetable.

21. The ingredient LIFEWAY calls “Evaporated Cane Juicse'sugar” or “dried cane

sirup.”

22. If a manufacturer makes a claim on a food labd,lfiibel must meet certain leg
requirements that help consumers make informedces@nd ensure that they are not misled
described more fully below, Defendant has made, @rdinues to make, unlawful as well

false and deceptive claims in violation of fedesatl California laws that govern the types

First Amended Class Action and Representative
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representations that can be made on food labdissellaws recognize that reasonable consu
are likely to choose products claiming to have altheor nutritional benefit over otherwi
similar food products that do not claim such préiperor benefits or that discloses cert
ingredients. More importantly, these laws recogriizat the failure to disclose the presenc
risk-increasing nutrients is deceptive becaus@iiveys to consumers the net impression th
food makes only positive contributions to a dietdoes not contain any nutrients at levels
raise the risk of diet-related diseases or healhied conditions.

23. Defendant has made, and continues to make, faldedaceptive claims on i
Misbranded Food Products in violation of federadl &ualifornia laws. In particular, Defend3
has violated federal and California labeling regales by listing sugar and/or sugar cane syt

as “evaporated cane juice.” According to the FIEi# term “evaporated cane juice” is not

mers
5e
ain

e of
at a

that

S
nt
ups

the

common or usual name of any type of sweetenerydiad) sugar or dried cane syrup becguse

sugar has a standard of identity defined by reguain 21 C.F.R. § 101.4b (20); 21 Ck

184.1854. The common or usual name for this ingreéds “sugar”. According to the FDA

sweeteners derived from sugar cane or sugar cane should not be listed in the ingredig

declaration by names that suggest that the ingnexiere juice, such as “evaporated cane juice.”

The FDA considers such representations to be “fatgemisleading” under section 403(a)(1

the FDCA (21 U.S.C. 343(a)(1)) because they faiteteeal the basic nature of the food ang

characterizing properties (i.e., that the ingretlieme sugars or syrups) as required by 21 C.FH

102.5.

24. Defendant’'s violations of law include the illegaldvartising, marketing
distribution, delivery and sale of Defendant's Muhded Food Products to consumers
California and throughout the United States.

25. Consumers have paid a premium price for Misbranéeod Products that the

have been misled into believing do not contain ddsleyars or syrups.

First Amended Class Action and Representative
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PARTIES

26. Plaintiff Figy is a resident of San Francisco, €@ahia who purchased variot
Lifeway’'s Misbranded Food Products during the fdqd) years prior to the filing of thi
Complaint (the “Class Period”).

27. Lifeway, Foods Inc. is an lllinois corporation dgirbusiness in the State
California and throughout the United States of Aigeer Lifeway Foods, Inc. has previously be
served with process.

28. Defendant is a leading producer of retail probialiary beverages and produ
similar to yogurt, including the Misbranded Foodducts. Defendant sells its food products
consumers through grocery and other retail stémesighout California and the United States.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

29. This Court has original jurisdiction over this actiunder 28 U.S.C. 8 1332(

because this is a class action in which: (1) treee2over 100 members in the proposed ¢

=

S

[%2)

of

ren

CtS

5 {0

d)

ass;

(2) members of the proposed class have a diffeignénship from Defendant; and (3) the claims

of the proposed class members exceed $5,000,06@ aggregate.

30. The Court has jurisdiction over the federal clailteged herein pursuant to 2

U.S.C. 8§ 1331, because it arises under the lawseddnited States.

31. The Court has jurisdiction over the California piaialleged herein pursuant to
U.S.C. 8 1367, because they form part of the saamse or controversy under Article Il of t
United States Constitution.

32.  Alternatively, the Court has jurisdiction over aldims alleged herein pursuant
28 U.S.C. § 1332, because the matter in controvexsgeds the sum or value of $75,000, ar

between citizens of different states.

33. The Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendsstause a substantial portion

of the wrongdoing alleged in this Amended Complaaturred in California. Defendant,
California corporation, is authorized to do busmes California, has sufficient minimu
contacts with California, and otherwise intentidyalvails itself of the markets in California a

the United States through the promotion, markeéing sale of merchandise, sufficient to rer

First Amended Class Action and Representative
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the exercise of jurisdiction by this Court permidsiunder traditional notions of fair play a
substantial justice.

34. Because a substantial part of the events or omissyoving rise to these clain

occurred in this District and because this Coust prrsonal jurisdiction over Defendant, venug is

proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 13pa(al (b).
FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

A. Identical California And Federal Laws Requlate FoodLabeling

35. Food manufacturers are required to comply with tidah federal and state lav
and regulations that govern the labeling of fooddpicts. First and foremost among these is
FDCA and its labeling regulations, including theee forth in 21 C.F.R. 8§ 10t seq

36. Pursuant to the Sherman Law, California has ex|yeadopted the federd
labeling requirements as its own and indicated tfetl food labeling regulations and ar
amendments to those regulations adopted pursuéim tederal act, in effect on January 1, 19
or adopted on or after that date shall be the fegglations of this state.” California Health

Safety Code § 110100.

37. In addition to its blanket adoption of federal llbg requirements, California has

also enacted a number of laws and regulationsatiapt and incorporate specific enumersa
federal food laws and regulations. For exampliaa product is misbranded under Califor
Health & Safety Code 8110660 if its labeling issealand misleading in one or more particul
Further, it is misbranded under Cal. Health & 8aféode 8110725 if it fails to use the comm

and usual name to identify an ingredient in thedpod.

B. Defendant's Use of “Evaporated Cane Juice” As An lgredient on Its Labels
is Unlawful

38.  All of Lifeway’s products at issue have unlawfullyilized the illegal term ECJ in

the ingredient list on their labels.
39. Lifeway unlawfully uses the illegal term “Evapordt€ane Juice” on its packa

labels, instead of the proper term “sugar”.

VS

the

=

93,

\ted
nia
ars.

on

2 Plaintiff alleges that the ingredient called “ewegted cane juice” by Defendant was in fact

sugar. It is possible, however, that instead ofiragldrystallized sugar as the ingredient at is
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40. Lifeway uses the term “ECJ” to make its productpesgy healthier than a produ
that contains “added sugar” as an ingredient. Tileigal label term is used to increase sales
to charge a premium by making a product seem healtnan it is in reality by making it appe

that no sugar has been added as an ingredienfetody’s food products.

41. Each of the “purchased products” and “substantigiltyilar products” at issue In

this case are misbranded in the same way in they list “evaporated cane juice” in t
ingredient list and omit the term “sugar” or “syfgs an added ingredient.

42.  Exemplar labels are provided in Exhibits 1-5. TEheghibits are true, correct a
accurate photographs of Lifeway’s ingredient labaissome of the Purchased Products
representative of the labels on the Substantiahyil& Products in their use of ECJ. In addit
to the products for which labels are provided, Wi has listed “ECJ” as an ingredient in e
and every one of its food products listed in Tdble

43. Lifeway’s product labeling fails to accurately idiéyn sugar as an “adde
ingredient” of its food products. Rather, the laldéntifies “Evaporated Cane Juice” as
ingredient, despite the fact that the FDCA requihed the ingredient be called “sugar” or “dri
cane syrup.” The ingredient is not “juice,” but“®ugar” or “syrup.” 21 C.F.R. § 101.4 (a)(
provides “[ilngredients required to be declaredtlom label or labeling of a food...shall be list
by common or usual name... .” The common or usualendon an ingredient is the narn
established by common usage or by regulation.” ZAFC § 102.5. These federal regulati
have been adopted by California pursuant to thensdme Law. As discussed below, ECJ is
the common or usual name of any sweetener as ssiathloy common usage or by regulation

44,  Consistent with the common and usual name regualgtithe FDA has specifical

warned companies not to use the term “Evaporatete Qaice.” The FDA has issued th

that the Defendant added dried sugar cane syrtippasgredient at issue. The common and u
name of such a syrup is “dried cane syrup” as lgetan 21 C.F.R. § 168.130. Regardless
whether the ingredient in question was sugar agdddane syrup, calling the ingredient EC
unlawful and violates the same state and fedegmtltsiry and regulatory provisions and
contrary to FDA policy and guidance. Moreover, tise of the term ECJ renders the prod
misbranded and illegal to sell or possess regadiésvhether the ECJ refers to sugar or st
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cane syrup. While Plaintiff alleges that the ingeedl in question was in fact sugar, the Plaintiff's

allegations that ingredient listed as ECJ was ssigauld be read to mean the ingredient liste
ECJ was sugar or, in the alternative, dried cangpsy
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warnings because a label containing the term EC&(false and misleading”; and (2) it is
violation of a number of labeling regulations desd to ensure that manufacturers label t
products with the common and usual names of theedhgnts they use and accurately desc
the ingredients they utilize; and (3) the ingretlienguestion is not a juice.

45.  According to the FDA’s published policy, “evapormteane juice” is simply

“false and misleading” way of describing sugar, #merefore, it is improper to disguise sugar i

a product as a type of “juice.”
46. In October of 2009, the FDA issué&lidance for Industry: Ingredients Declar
as Evaporated Cane JuicBraft Guidance (“2009 ECJ Guidance”)emphasisadded) which

advised industry that:

[T]he term “evaporated cane juice” has startedpjpear as an ingredient on food
labels, most commonly to declare the presence ektemers derived from sugar
cane syrup. However, FDA'’s current policy is thaesteners derived from sugar
cane syrup should not be declared as “evaporated pice” because that term
falsely suggests that the sweeteners are juice...

“Juice” is defined by 21 CFR 120.1(a) as “the aqusediquid expressed or
extracted from one or more fruits or vegetablesegs of the edible portions of
one or more fruits or vegetables, or any concesdraf such liquid or puree.”...

As provided in 21 CFR 101.4(a)(1), “Ingredientsuiegd to be declared on the
label or labeling of a food... shall be listed by eoon or usual name...” The

common or usual name for an ingredient is the nesteblished by common usage
or by regulation (21 CFR 102.5(d)). The commomuswmal name must accurately
describe the basic nature of the food or its charamg properties or ingredients,

and may not be “confusingly similar to the nameaal other food that is not

reasonably encompassed within the same name” (RLIOB.5(a))...

Sugar cane products with common or usual namesetefy regulation are sugar
(21 CFR 101.4(b)(20)) and cane sirup (alternativegdelled “syrup”) (21 CFR
168.130). Other sugar cane products have commaoisual names established by
common usage (e.g., molasses, raw sugar, brownr,stgdinado sugar,
muscovado sugar, and demerara sugar)...

The intent of this draft guidance is to advise ribgulated industry of FDA’s view
that the term “evaporated cane juice” is not the@mn or usual name of any type
of sweetener, including dried can syrup. Because cyrup has a standard of
identity defined by regulation in 21 CFR 168.13%e tommon or usual name for
the solid or dried form of cane syrup is “dried eayrup.”...

Sweeteners derived from sugar cane syrup shouldedisted in the ingredient
declaration by names which suggest that the ingnesli are juice, such as
“evaporated cane juiceFDA considers such representations to be falsend

misleading under section 403(a)(1) of the Act (21 U.S.C. 3J3() because they
fail to reveal the basic nature of the food andlitaracterizing properties (i.e., that
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the ingredients are sugars or syrups) as requiyedl@FR 102.5. Furthermore,
sweeteners derived from sugar cane syrup are et and should not be included
in the percentage juice declaration on the labklsewerages that are represented
to contain fruit or vegetable juice (see 21 CFR.20L (emphasis added).

http://www.fda.gov/Food/GuidanceComplianceReguMtdpormation/GuidanceDocuments/Fo
dLabelingNutrition/ucm181491.html

47. The FDA'’s position is clear: labels listing “evapted cane juice” are “false a
misleading.” ECJ is an unlawful term because nasthe common or usual name for sugar.

ingredient listed as “evaporated cane juice” ondddant’s labels is really “sucrose” as define

nd
The

1 in

21 C.F.R. § 184.1854 which is required to be ligtisdsugar”. While FDA regulations generally

provide that “[tlhe name of an ingredient shallabepecific name and not a collective (gene
name,” the regulations expressly provide that f{ffjurposes of ingredient labeling, the te
sugarshall refer to sucrose, which is obtained fromasugane or sugar beets in accordance

the provisions of 184.1854 of this chapter.” 2F.®. § 101.4(b)(20)(emphasis in original).

ric)
rm
with

21

C.F.R. 8 184.1854 lists the chemical names andifden“sucrose”, CAS number and structure

of sugar/sucrose (Cl2 H22 O11, CAS Reg. No. 5750;1p-D-fructofuranosyle-D-

glucopyranoside) as well as its common names (swg@rose, cane sugar, or beet sugar).

21

C.F.R. § 184.1854 also confirms that the definibisugar/sucrose covers and includes products

“obtained by crystallization from sugar cane or @augeet juice that has been extracted

pressing or diffusion, then clarified and evapaddt& he ingredient identified as ECJ meets

by
his

definition and is sucrose. As such, Defendant ctucall its sweetener ingredient “evaporated

cane juice,” but must call it “sugar” or alternay, “dried cane syrup” pursuant to FC
regulations.

48. It is well established FDA policy that ingrediemisist always be declared by th
common and usual names. In its October 2G0&ance for Industry: A Food Labeling Gui

(6. Ingredient Lists)the FDA advises:

Should the common or usual name always be usaddoedients?

Answer: Always list the common or usual name for ingrediemtless there is a
regulation that provides for a different term. Fostance, use the term “sugar”
instead of the scientific name “sucrose.”

“‘INGREDIENTS: Apples, Sugar, Water, and Spices”
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See also section 4 question 3. 21 CFR 101.4(a)

http://www.fda.gov/Food/GuidanceRequlation/GuidddeeumentsRequlatorylnformation/Lab
ingNutrition/ucm064880.htm#common

49. Defendant could easily have complied with the FDA &herman Law labeling

regulations by simply following the FDA'’s clear emple and listing “sugar” on the ingredie
list instead of resorting to the illegal term “ewapted cane juice.”

50. When the food industry first approached the FDA®99 with the idea of callin
sugar “evaporated cane juice,” the FDA respondetth \&i guidance letter (“2000 Guidan
Letter”), saying that certain sweeteners have “wabgnized common or usual namel[s]” and
common or usual name of “[tlhe product extractemmfrsugar cane is either ‘sugar’ [21CFH
101.4(b)(20) and 184.1854], or ‘cane sirup’ [21 C&R68.130].” The 2000 Guidance Let

went on to point out to the industry that sweetsrseich as the sugar at issue here:

should not be declared in the ingredient declamatip names which suggest that
the ingredients are juice, e.g "evaporated _ jumé” nectar”, or in such a way as
to suggest that the ingredients contain no suggr,"eatural extract of _". Such
representations are false and misleading anddaikveal the basic nature of the
food and its characterizing properties, i.e. trgredients are sugar or syrups. They
are not juice and we should also point out that false and misleading to include
any of these sweeteners in the fruit juice pergaideclaration on the label. As
you know, many of FDA's criminal prosecutions ofrmgacturers and seizures of
fruit juices for economic adulteration have invalvprecisely these sweeteners
being misrepresented in such a way as to misleasucoers.

We are concerned about the potential of these digmés to be labeled in such a
way as to mislead consumers. We trust that thegbong will be helpful in
providing guidance on the appropriate labelinghefse ingredients.

el

nt

ce
the
R 8

ter

51. Since it issued the 2000 Guidance Letter, the FR#& $ent out numerous warning

letters to food manufacturers putting the food stduon notice that ECJ is not the commor

usual name of any sweetener, and that its useaxhl&bels is unlawful. Pursuant to FDA poli¢

warning letters are issued for violations of regjolas that the FDA considers to be “violations
regulatory significance”. The FDA warning lettessme of which were issued before 2009
others after the 2009 ECJ Guidance, have all eglyretated that “evaporated cane juice” is
the common or usual name of any type of sweetenértlaat it is not “juice”. The FDA hg
stated that the proper way to declare this ingredian be found on the FDA website in the 2
ECJ Guidance.
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52. The FDA has not wavered from its position that {emated cane juice” is a fal
and misleading term that violates numerous labealggmlations and misbrands products sing

was first set out in 2000. Despite the FDA’s nunuer@olicy statements, warning letters

5

eit

nd

guidance, including the issuance of the 2009 EQdakcewhich merely reiterates a position the

FDA has taken for at least a full decade, Lifewanefl to remove the unlawful term “ECJ” fr

their misbranded food products’ ingredient listseway continued to use the unlawful term B

m

CJ

despite being aware of the unsuccessful efforthefits organic food trade association to have

the FDA withdraw the ECJ guidance, including a Delger 4, 2009 letter submitted to the FI

by the trade association.

53.  Plaintiff and the Class paid a premium price fdeliay’'s products with the illegal

term “ECJ” listed on their labels. Plaintiff wouldbt have purchased these products ha

DA

1 he

known the products (1) contained sugar as an addgddient, and (2) were illegal to sell and

possess nor would he have expended the purchasefpriproducts that were worthless due

their illegality.

54. Plaintiff and the Class have been damaged by Liy&swilegal conduct in that

they purchased misbranded and worthless produatsvére illegal to sell or possess.

55. Plaintiff's unlawful ECJ claims are brought purstudo the unlawful prong of

California’s Unfair Competition Law, Cal. Bus. & &fr Code § 17200 and the Consumers L¢
Remedies Act, Cal. Civ. Code 8175 seq Plaintiff alleges that Defendant packaged
labeled the Purchased Products and Substantiaiyie®iProducts in violation of California

Sherman Law which adopts, incorporates, and igllinelevant aspects, identical to the feds

10

pgal
and
S

bral

Food Drug & Cosmetics Act, 21 U.S.C. 8§ 3@ seq(“FDCA”). Purchased Products and Class

Products with this identical type of ECJ labelinglations are “misbranded.”
56. 21 C.F.R. 88 101.3, 101.4 and 102.5, which haven lmspted by Californig
prohibit manufacturers from referring to foods bything other than their common and us

names

% Pursuant to 21 C.F.R. §102.5 the common or usaalenmust accurately describe the b
nature of the food or its characterizing propertesngredients, and may not be “confusin
similar to the name of any other food that is re@sonably encompassed within the same na
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57. 21 C.F.R. 8§ 101.4, which has been adopted by @aidpprohibits manufacturef

from referring to ingredients by anything other rthéheir common and usual names.
specifically specifies in subsection (b)(20) thfftlor purposes of ingredient labeling, the te

sugar shall refer to sucrose, which is obtainethfsugar cane or sugar beets in accordance

It
rm

with

the provisions of 184.1854 of this chapter.” 2E.Q. § 101.4(b)(20). 21 C.F.R. § 184.1854 |jsts

the chemical names, CAS number and structure ariigrose (C12 H22 O11, CAS Reg. |
57-50-11-1, B-D-fructofuranosyle-D-glucopyranoside) as well as its common namegais
sucrose, cane sugar, or beet sugar). 21 C.F.R488%4 also confirms that the definition
sugar/sucrose covers products “obtained by cryzsibn from sugar cane or sugar beet ju
that has been extracted by pressing or diffustoen tlarified and evaporated.”

58. The Federal Register makes clear that the defmuiosugar/sucrose in 21 C.F.
8 184.1854 was specifically modified by the FDActiver sugar/sucrose that was obtained by

evaporation of sugar cane juice stating:

In addition, the agency notes that the descriptiddnsucrose in proposed 8§
184.1854(a) does not explicitly cover the extragtiby pressing, of sugar cane
juice from sugar cane or beet juice from sugardaat also does not mention the
evaporation of the extracted sugar cane juice et jugce. Therefore, the agency
has modified 8§ 184.1854(a) to include "pressing" aaspossible extraction
procedure and "evaporated” as a step in the reéneof sucrose.

53 F.R. 44862.

59. Lifeway has violated the regulatory provisions dethabove by failing to use th
common or usual name for sugar as mandated byltaparticular, Lifeway used the unlawf
term “ECJ” on its products in violation of numerotexderal and state labeling regulatid
designed to protect consumers from illegal misbeandroducts in direct violation of expre

FDA policy as quoted above.

60. Defendant Lifeway violated 21 C.F.R. 88 101.4 and2.% (adopted and

(21 C.F.R. 102.5(a)). Defendant’s use of the tei@d Eails this requirement because that t
does not accurately describe the basic nature effabd or its characterizing properties
ingredients, and may not be “confusingly similarth® name of any other food that is
reasonably encompassed within the same name. hieteue nature of the ingredient is a type
added sugar added to sweeten food. The charantgproperties of this ingredient were fals
misrepresented as a juice when in fact they wesagar or syrup. Defendant hid this fact
unlawfully using a confusing name (a type of juittet is not reasonably encompassed within
same name.
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incorporated by reference by Sherman Law § 110h@0Sherman Law 8§ 110725). Sherman L

8 110725 mandates that a product is misbranddeeitbmmon and usual ingredient names

not used. Therefore, Lifeway violated the UCL’s amful prong by misbranding its produ¢

with ECJ instead of using the term “sugar”; or #tternative term “dried cane syrup.”

61. Lifeway's act of selling an illegally misbrandedopuct violates Sherman Law
110760 which makes it unlawful for any person tonaofacture, sell, deliver, hold, or offer f
sale any food that is misbranded. The sale of dnamsled product results in an indepenc
violation of the unlawful prong of the UCL thatssparate from any labeling violation.

62. Pursuant to Sherman Law § 110825, the sale of auciisbranded product.€.
one whose label fails to use the common and usugedient name as required by I3
constitutes a criminal act punishable by up to weehonth in jail. As a result, the injury to t
Class arises from the Defendant illegally sellingraduct it misbranded, the sale of which i
criminal act. Plaintiff and the Class have beenawflilly deprived of money in an illeg
transaction that occurred because the Defendaghttisein a worthless, illegal product that co
not be legally sold or possessed. Due to the lgnohibition of possession of such a prod

consumers have been unwittingly placed, solely dinectly by Lifeway's conduct, in a leg

aw

are

ent

position that no reasonable consumer would cha@sasumers have thus been directly injured

by the Defendant’s illegal act of unlawfully setlithem an illegal product. This harm g¢
beyond mere economic injury.

63. Numerous FDA warning letters, which are issued dafyiolations of regulator

DES

significance, have made it clear that the use eftdrm “evaporated cane juice” is unlawful

because the term does not represent the commosual name of a food or ingredient. Thg
warning letters state that foods that bear labb&ds ¢ontain the term “evaporated cane juice”
misbranded. Such unlawful conduct by Defendantwafe is actionable under California g
irrespective of any reliance by consumers suchaiati.

64. Under California law, a food product that is misitad cannot be legal
manufactured, advertised, distributed, possessesbldr Because these products are illega

possess, they have no economic value and areylegaithless. Indeed, the sale or possessia
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misbranded food is a criminal act in California.eTéale of misbranded products is illegal un
federal law as well, as previously stated, andreanlt in the seizure of the misbranded prod
and imprisonment of those involved. When Plaintfid the Class purchased an illeg:
misbranded product (such as the Purchased ProalndtSubstantially Similar Products), theré
causation and injury even absent reliance on thé E@representation that misbranded
product.

65. Pursuant to California Civ. Code 8§ 3523 it is aifted legal maxim that “fo

der
Licts
ally
> S

the

every wrong there is a remedy.” The unlawful sdlensbranded food products that are illegal to

sell or possess as a matter of express statutorpuasuant to Sherman Law 8 110760 — stan

ding

alone without any allegations of deception by Ddtert other than the implicit misrepresenta

ion

that its products are legal to sell or possesangrreview of or reliance on the particular labglin

claims by Plaintiff — gives rise to Plaintiff's hg to recover for the damages suffered as a r

of the illegal sale. Such illegal sales constitilleggal contracts and as such are void and er

psult

title

Plaintiff and the Class to damages and restitutiother the common law and numerous statutory

provisions enacted by California including but hotited to California Civ. Code 88§ 1427, 142
1549, 1619, 1621, 1667, 1668, 1712, 3281-82, 323d0, 3333, 3345, 3360, 3366-68, 3523,
3539. In short, Defendant’s injury causing unlawdahduct is the only necessary element nes
for liability. All Plaintiff needs to show is thate bought an unlawful product that he would
have otherwise purchased absent the Defendantisdaio disclose the material fact that

product was unlawful to sell or possess. Therefitiig,claim does not sound in fraud; insteac

alleges strict liability pursuant to the above difgovisions of the federal law and Sherman L

and California’s common law and laws relating teghl contracts and transactions. Howe
Plaintiff did in fact rely upon the misrepresenat on the labels.

66. The Plaintiff was injured by the loss of the purebarice in an illegal transactiq
the illegality of which Plaintiff was unaware, amdich the Defendant had a duty to disclg
Defendant misled Plaintiff to believe that the Wwfey’'s products were legal to purchase
possess. Had Plaintiff known that the Lifeway'sducts were misbranded, he would not h

bought Defendant’s products. Plaintiff relied thie Defendant’s explicit ECJ representatic
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As a result of such reliance, Plaintiff thoughttth#eway’'s products was preferable to otf
similar products lacking such statements. Pldifdifther relied upon the Defendant’s impli
representation based on Defendant’s material oomssf material facts that these Lifew
products were legal to sell and possess. Reasmnabsumers would be, and were, misled in
same manner as Plaintiff. Defendant had a dutgiigdolose the illegality of their misbrand
products because (a) they had exclusive knowledgeaterial facts not known or reasona
accessible to the Plaintiff; and (b) the Defendatively concealed such material facts from
Plaintift. The Defendant had a duty to disclose thformation required by the labeling la
discussed herein because of the disclosure regamsnctontained in those laws. In additi
Plaintiff was injured because he was unwittinglsigqald in legal jeopardy due to the possessid
Defendant’s illegal and misbranded products. Nso@able consumer would buy a product
was illegal to sell or possess.

67. Defendant’s practices violated a number of lawsetdorth in section No. 5 abo
which render the Purchased Products and Substgr8iatilar products misbranded.

68. Defendant’s act of selling a misbranded productatés Sherman Lag§ 110760

(unlawful for any person to manufacture, sell, \w&lj hold, or offer for sale any food that

is

misbranded). The sale of a misbranded producttesuan independent violation of the unlawful

prong that is separate from the labeling violatidissed above. When Plaintiff purchas

Defendant’'s misbranded products, there was causatia injury even absent reliance on

ed

the

misrepresentation/omission that misbranded theymtod his injury arises from the unlawful sale

of an illegal product that is crime to sell andweito possess. Plaintiff was deprived of mong
an illegal sale and given a worthless illegal peidin return. In addition, due to the law

prohibition of possession of such a product, coresgnhave been unwittingly placed by

Defendant’s conduct in a legal position that nsoeable consumer would agree to be placed.

69. Thus, in this case, where Defendant unlawfully sptdducts containing the

unlawful term “ECJ” there is 1) a violation of sfexlabeling regulations and 2) an independ
violation of the unlawful prong due to the Defentiausale of an illegal product that is unlaw

to possess. Plaintiff would not have bought thebmanded food products had he known or
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Defendant disclosed the material fact that the rarstbed food products were illegal to sell and

possess. The Plaintiff was injured by the Deferidanblawful act of selling him an illeg:

product that was illegal to sell or possess.

C. Defendant’s Use of “Evaporated Cane Juice” as an bredient on Its Labels is
Fraudulent, Deceptive and “Misleading” Because It Rils to Identify “Added
Sugar”

70.  The Plaintiff is a health conscious consumer whshe&s to avoid “added suga
in the food products he purchases. “Added sugaa’riscognized term that has a distinct mea
as described below. The Plaintiff was unaware that Lifeway products he was purchas
contained “added sugars” that waxddedas an ingredient into Defendant’s food productsndu
processing or preparation. While Plaintiff was aavtrat the Lifeway food products contair
some sugars, he believed these sugars were natuoaturring sugars that we

foundnaturally in the ingredients used by Lifeway. The Plaintitis unaware that the Lifewq

3|

S
ning

ng

products he purchased contained “added sugar’r8dson that Plaintiff was unaware of this fact

was that Lifeway utilized the false and misleadiagn “evaporated cane juice” to identify t
added sugairt added as an ingredient to its food product. FB& deems the term “evaporat
cane juice” to be “false and misleading” becausdt fgil[s] to reveal the basic nature of t
food and its characterizing propertiase( that the ingredients are sugars or syrups)” an
“sweeteners derived from sugar cane syrup areuncs.

71.  Plaintiff, who scanned the ingredient lists of tileway’s products for forms o
added sugar, failed to recognize the term “evapdratine juice” as a form of added sugar.
is hardly surprising since 1) the FDA considers timen to be false and misleadibgcausat
fails to reveal that the ingredient is a sugar syrp; 2) juice is considered to be a healthy fi
that does not contain added sugars, 3) most listglded sugars and sugar aliases do no

evaporated cane juice as an added sugar or sugsiraaid 4) consumer studies confirm that n

I'his

ood
E list

nost

purchase decisions are made in a fraction of anseemd thus the potential for a false and

misleading term to mislead is significant. Moreqvas discussed below, the Nutrition Fg

cts

listing of total sugars does not allow a consuroeddtermine if a product has any added sugars.
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Consumers are only able to determine the preseh@aded sugars by reading a produ

Cts’

ingredient list. Companies like Lifeway that misththeir sugars in the ingredient list with false

and misleading terms frustrate this capability Wirg the added sugar. In addition, the inclus

of words such as “juice” or “cane” into the falsedamisleading term “evaporated cane juice”

ion

do

not mitigate the false and misleading nature oftdren and in fact, in the case of a word ljke

“juice,” actually makes it misleading in the eydstlee FDA since it is an added sugar and n
juice. In contrast, the failure to utilize wordg&di“sugar” or “syrup” to describe the ingredig
identified by Lifeway as evaporated cane juicealsd and misleading because it conceals the
that the ingredient is in fact an added sugar, maareadded sugar or syrup sweetener.

72.  The Plaintiff's desire to avoid added sugars wasswoaable. Added sugar is
known health risk that consumers are advised taddwpthe United States government, scient
and educational institutions, and food-related camms such as grocery store chains and
manufacturers. All of these entities know and iblil) there is a distinction between ad
sugars and naturally occurring sugars; 2) addedrsubgave no beneficial nutritional val
contribute only empty calories and have recognikedlth risks 3) consumers should eit
eliminate or greatly limit their consumption of addsugars and foods containing added su

4) it is the_ingredient lishind_not the nutrition facts parsfla food’s label that informs consumg

of the presence of added sugars; and 5) consureedsta be careful to avoid added sugar th
disguised by another name.

73. The 2010 Dietary Guidelines promulgated by U.S. @#pent of Health an

pt a
2Nt

fact

ific
food
ded
e,
her
jars;
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d

Human Services and the U.S. Department of Agricelltuake clear that 1) there is a distinction

between “added sugars” and naturally occurring 9dd consumers should either eliminate
greatly limit their consumption of added sugars &mbs containing added sugars; 3) it is
ingredient list and not the nutrition facts portioha food’s label that informs consumers of
presence of “added sugars.” Available at:

http://www.health.gov/dietaryguidelines/dga2010tBigGuidelines2010.pdf

74.  The 2010 Dietary Guidelines indicate that consursbaild “[l]imit calorie intake

from ... added sugars “and “[c]hoose foods prepargil httle or no added sugarsfd. It further
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states[u]se the Nutrition Facts labeko choose .... packaged foods with less total sugend
use the ingredients ligb choose foods with little or no added sugatd.” TheseGuidelines

indicate that:

An important underlying principle is the need tottol calorie intake to manage

body weight and limit the intake of food componetiiat increase the risk of

certain chronic diseases. This goal can be achibyawnsuming fewer foods that

are high in sodium, solid fatadded sugars and refined grains and, for those who
drink, consuming alcohol in moderation.

Id. (emphasis added).

75. The 2010 Dietary Guidelines also define “added ssiga

“added sugars—Sugars, syrups, and other caloric sweetenersatiegatadded to
foods during processing, preparation, or consunggarately. Added sugars do
not include naturally occurring sugars such asdhasfruit or milk. Names for
added sugars include: brown sugar, corn sweeteaert,syrup, dextrose, fructose,
fruit juice concentrates, glucose, high-fructosenceyrup, honey, invert sugar,
lactose, maltose, malt syrup, molasses, raw stigidnipado sugar, trehalose, and
sucrose”.

76.  Further, the 2010 Dietary Guidelines make clear ¢tbasumers who wish to avaid

added sugars must read the ingredient list andotaety on the Nutrition Facts line item listir

of total sugars:

THE FOOD LABEL: A USEFUL TOOL

“Using the Food Label to Track Calories, Nutrierasd Ingredients” (Appendix 4)
provides detailed guidance that can help Americaake healthy food choices.

The Nutrition Facts label provides information onetamount of calories;
beneficial nutrients, such as dietary fiber ancticah; as well as the amount of
certain food components that should be limitechm diet, including saturated fat,
trans fat, cholesterol, and sodium.

The ingredients list can be used to find out whethiea food or beverage
contains solid fats, added sugarsvhole grains, and refined grains.

Id. (emphasis added).

77. Table A4-2 of the 2010 Dietary Guidelines listswanber of examples of adds
ingredients that can be listed as an ingredierd fiood product’'s ingredient list. Table A4

states:

Examples of Added Sugars That Can Be Listed asgumedlient:
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Anhydrous dextrose, Lactose, Brown sugar, Malt gyf@onfectioner’s powdered
sugar, Maltose, Corn syrup, Maple syrup, Corn sysalpds, Molasses, Dextrin
Nectars (e.g., peach nectar, pear nectar), Fru®aseake syrup, High-fructose
corn syrup, Raw sugar, Honey Sucrose, Invert si®agar, and White granulated
sugar.

78.  The list above does not indicate that ECJ is a fofradded sugar. However, the
2010 Dietary Guidelines indicate that while EChdad recognized by the FDA as an ingredient

name, this added sugar is sometimes listed aggaadient on the labels of food products stating:
Other added sugars may be listed as an ingredigrdrb not recognized by FDA
as an ingredient name. These include cane jui@paeated corn sweetener, fruit

juice concentrate, crystal dextrose, glucose, diduictose, sugar cane juice, and
fruit nectar.

79.  Other federal government agencies adopt a simgparaach to added sugars. For

instance, the National Institute of Health 1) canB the health risks posed by added sugar, 2)

indicates the need to read the ingredient listrtd &dded sugars and 3) utilizes a list that fails

include the false and misleading term evaporatee @ace.

80. The National Institute of Health publishes the daling about “added sugan”
Added Sugars

With both the USDA Food Patternsand the Dietary Approaches to Stop
Hypertension (DASHEating Plan, added sugars mean more calories wtithore
nutrients. For some people, added sugars can teadyher levels of fats in the
blood, raising their risk of heart disease.

Read the ingredients labt see if the processed food you are eating hdsdad
sugar. Key words on the label to look for:

* brown suge * invert suga
e corn sweetener » lactose

e corn syrup * maltose

» dextrose e malt syrup

» fructose * molasses

» fruit juice concentrate e raw sugar

* glucose * sucrose

» high-fructose corn syrup e sugar

* honey * maple syrup

http://www.nia.nih.gov/health/publication/whats-yeplate/solid-fats-added-suqgars

(1)

81. The United States government’s approach to addedrsus echoed by oth
scientific, educational and medical entities. Foraraple, the American Heart Association
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(“AHA") states the following about “added sugar”:

There are two types of sugars in American dietsurally occurring sugars and
added sugars.

http://www.heart.org/HEARTORG/GettingHealthy/NuimitCenter/Sugars-

Naturally occurring sugars are foundturallyin foods such as fruit
(fructose) and milk (lactose).

Added sugars includenysugars or caloric sweeteners that addedto
foods or beverages during processing or prepar&siach as putting sugar
in your coffee or adding sugar to your cereal). édldsugars (or added
sweeteners) can include natural sugars such ag whdgar, brown sugar
and honey as well as other caloric sweeteners #nat chemically
manufactured (such as high fructose corn syrup).

101 _UCM_306024 Article.jsp

82.

is not the place to look for “added sugar”:

Finding added sugars in food

Unfortunately, you can’t tell easily by lookingtae nutrition facts panel of a food
if it contains added sugars. The line for “sugar€ludes both added and natural
sugars. Naturally occurring sugars are found irkrfidctose) and fruit (fructose).
Any product that contains milk (such as yogurt,knok cream) or fruit (fresh,
dried) contains someatural sugars.

Reading the ingredient list on a processed foaabell can tell you if the product
contains added sugars, just not the exact amoutiteifproduct also contains
natural sugars.

Names for added sugars on labels include:

http://www.heart.org/HEARTORG/GettingHealthy/NuimitCenter/Sugars-

The American Heart Association cautions consuntasthe Nutrition Facts pangl

Brown sugar

Corn sweetener

Corn syrup

Fruit juice concentrates
High-fructose corn syrup
Honey

Invert sugar

Malt sugar

Molasses

Raw sugar

Sugar

Sugar molecules ending in “ose” (dextrose, fructghecose, lactose, maltose,
sucrose)

Syrup

101_UCM_306024 Article.jsp Like the United States government’s list, thgt hlso fails tg
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contain the term evaporated cane juice.

83. In addition, the AHA warns that consumers “neededuce added sugar” in thei

diets and therefore the AHA has recommended veiot sidded sugar guidelines stating:

Over the past 30 years, Americans have steadilgwzord more and more added
sugars in their diets, which has contributed todhesity epidemic. Reducing the
amount of added sugars we eat cuts calories antelprnyou improve your heart

health and control your weight.

The American Heart Association recommehuasting the amount of added
sugarsyou consume to no more than half of your dailycsitonary calorie
allowance. For most American women, this is no ntbes 100 calories per day
and no more than 150 calories per day for men ljouta6 teaspoons per day for
women and 9 teaspoons per day for n{emphasis added)

http://www.heart.org/HEARTORG/GettingHealthy/NuimitCenter/Sugars-

101 _UCM_306024 Article.jsp

84. Similarly, the Harvard School of Public Healttakes the same position with

respect to added sugar. According toktaevard School of Public Health

Added Sugar in the Diet

Your body doesn’'t need to get any carbohydrate faolshed sugar. That's why the
Healthy Eating Pyramid says sugary drinks and ss\&sduld be used sparingly, if
at all, and the Healthy Eating Plate does not shelipods with added sugars.

The American Heart Association (AHA) has recommehdbat Americans
drastically cut back on added sugar to help slog dbesity and heart disease
epidemics.

» The AHA suggests an added-sugar limit of no moaa thOO calories per
day (about 6 teaspoons or 24 grams of sugar) fet momen and no more
than 150 calories per day (about 9 teaspoons gra&@s of sugar) for most
men.

» There’s no nutritional need or benefit that conresnf eating added sugar.
A good rule of thumb is to avoid products that havet of added sugar

http://www.hsph.harvard.edu/nutritionsource/cealar-content/

85. The Harvard School of Public Health further noteatt‘{SJome ingredient list
mask the amount of sugar in a product and infore@mtsumers how to avoid being fooled

such practices stating:
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How to spot added sugar on food labels

Spotting added sugar on food labels can requireestetective work. Though food
and beverage manufacturers list a product’s totadumt of sugar per serving on
the Nutrition Facts Panel, they are not requiretistohow much of that sugar is
added sugar versus naturally occurring sugar. $hally you'll need to scan the
ingredients list of a food or drink to find the adidsugar.

When you eat an apple or carrot or bowl of ste¢leaimeal, you know what you
are eating—an apple or carrot or steel-cut oatat’mot the case with ready-to-
eat breakfast cereals, cookies, frozen dinnersngr of the thousands of other
processed foods. Think of these as terra incogairtd, the ingredient list on the
package as your map to it. But like an old piragpmsome ingredient lists are
designed to confuse and muddle rather than leadodlie treasure. The biggest
sleight of hand involves sugar. ......

The Nutrition Facts Label isn’t much help. By latvmust list the grams of sugar
in each product. But some foods naturally contaigas, while others get theirs
from added sweeteners, and food labeling laws dagjtire companies to spell
out how much sugar is added....

Why does this matter? ...

The American Heart Association (AHA) has recommehdbat Americans
drastically cut back on added sugar to help slog dbesity and heart disease
epidemics. Z) The AHA'’s suggested added sugar threshold is ncernthan 100
calories per day (about 6 teaspoons or 24 gramssgdr) for most women and no
more than 150 calories per day (about 9 teaspooB6 grams of sugar) for most
men.

http://www.hsph.harvard.edu/nutritionsource/cealar-content/

86.  While theHarvard School of Public Healtiotes it is possible to compare differ
products and utilize math to figure out the amqastopposed to the presence) of added sug

certain types of properly labeled products thatcldse the presence of added sugar,

comparison approach suggested by the school doesvork when 1) the added sugatrf i

disguised by a false and misleading term like B@i tonceals the presence of added st

According to theHarvard School of Public Health

Nutrition sleuths can compare the labels of two ilsimproducts—one with
[added] sugar, one without—and do a little matliigare out how much sugar is
added sugar. For example, a 6-ounce, fat-free @eonyfield Farm yogurt has 12
grams of sugar. The ingredients list shows no addegr, so all of the yogurt’s
sugar comes from lactose, the sugar that is natui@ind in milk. A fat-free
vanilla Stonyfield Farm yogurt has 24 grams of sug#e extra 12 grams is added
sugar from “naturally milled organic sugar.”

Id.
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87. This approach does not work where there is no meetlisted in the ingredie
list that is recognized as an added sugar. In ausituation it is only possible to determine t
one product has more total sugar than another écause of the concealed added sugar
would appear to consumers as merely the differbeteeen levels of naturally occurring su
in the two products. It also is impractical to egpconsumers who make purchase decisions
fraction of a second to have to perform mathembatakulations utilizing information gleang
from two separate product labels.

88. A term like ECJ that purports to be a juice consehk presence of added sug

because by definition, 100% juice is a source dtina sugars and no added sugars. Thu

confirmed by University of Florida “100% fruit juec has no added sugars.

https://edis.ifas.ufl.edu/pdffiles/FY/FY135800.pdfhus, accurate descriptions are necessa

ingredient lists because:

although the [nutritional facts] panel is helpfor finding total sugar, it does not
differentiate between natural sugar and added sufar example, sugar would be
listed on the Nutrition Facts Panel for both 100%nge juice and an orange drink,
but only the orange drink will have sugar added.to

89. The Mayo Clinic also is on record confirming 1) téference between adds
sugar and naturally occurring sugar; 2) the haadits posed by added sugar; 3) the need to &

added sugars and limit consumption of foods comtgiadded sugars; 4) the importance of

ingredient list in identifying added sugar; 5) ihability to use the Nutrition Facts line item for

sugar to determine whether added sugar was prasdn®) the numerous names used for ac

sugars. According to the Mayo Clinic:

Added sugar: Don't get sabotaged by sweeteners -

Do you know how much sugar is in your diet? See whgdded sugar is a
concern and how you can cut back.

"Added sugar" refers to sugars and syrups addémbtis during processing.
Why is added sugar a problem?

Foods with a lot of added sugar contribute extlaress to your diet but provide
little nutritional value. In addition, added sugaroften found in foods that also
contain solid fats.
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Eating too many foods with added sugar and sotlil dats the stage for potential
health problems, such as:

e Poor nutrition. If you fill up on foods laden with added sugaruymay
skimp on nutritious foods, which means you couldsmut on important
nutrients, vitamins and minerals. Regular sodag#ay especially big role.
It's easy to fill up on sweetened soft drinks akig sow-fat milk and even
water — giving you lots of extra sugar and caloaad no other nutritional
value.

* Weight gain. There's usually no single cause for being overiemy
obese. But added sugar may contribute to the pmobMany foods and
beverages contain lots of sugar, making them materie-dense. When
you eat foods that are sugar sweetened, it is re&si€onsume more
calories than if the foods are unsweetened.

* Increased triglycerides.Triglycerides are a type of fat in the bloodstream
and fat tissue. Eating an excessive amount of addgdr can increase
triglyceride levels, which may increase your rigiheart disease.

» Tooth decay.All forms of sugar promote tooth decay by allowimacteria
to proliferate and grow. The more often and longer snack on foods and
beverages with either natural sugar or added stlgmmore likely you are
to develop cavities, especially if you don't preetgood oral hygiene.

In the 2010 Dietary Guidelines for Americans, th&lDepartment of Agriculture
(USDA) recommends that no more than about 5 toer6gmt of your total daily
calories come from added sugar and solid fats.

The American Heart Association has even more-spegiiidelines for added
sugar — no more than 100 calories a day from addegdr for most women and
no more than 150 calories a day for most men. Fladbut 6 teaspoons of added
sugar for women and 9 for men.

Unfortunately, most Americans get more than 22pgeass — or 355 calories —
of added sugar a day, which far exceeds these reeoations.

http://www.mayoclinic.com/health/added-sugar/my0R84

90. The Mayo Clinic Reports that:

Identifying added sugar can be confusing. Most feetgok at the Nutrition Facts

part of the label for the total number of gramswodar in a serving of the product.
It's important to realize, however, that the amasimbwn includes natural sugars
found in certain ingredients, such as grain, famd milk. The only reliable way to

identify added sugar is to look at the ingrediast..l..Know that sugar goes by
many different names, though.

Different names for added sugar

Sugar goes by many different names, depending sosaturce and how it was
made. This can also make it hard to identify adslegar, even when you read
ingredient lists and food labels.

http://www.mayoclinic.com/health/added-sugar/my0R84
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91. Not only do government and nationally recognizedalthe institutions an
associations advise on the manners in which toctleted determine added sugar, but reput
food related companies such as grocery store ctamdsfood manufacturers have adopte
similar approach with respect to added sugars:ekample the Shoprite chain of grocery stc

states that:

The nutrition panel of packaged foods lists thaltamount of sugars in a serving

of food. This number includes sugars found naturallfood as well as the sugar

that is added. The ingredient list must stateradl dugars which are added to the
product.

Sugar can often be “disguised” on food labels stheee are many different forms
and names for sugar. ....

What's the bottom line?

Choose healthy foods that contain natural sugarst méien and limit your

consumption of foods high in added sugar. Be aorméd shopper. Read the
ingredient panel to be sure you are truly getting@duct without a lot of added
sugar.

http://www.shoprite.com/for-your-family/dietitianmssrner/archives/sugar-by-any-other-name-
still-sugar/

92.  Similarly, the Publix chain of grocery stores ssate

Controlling added sugars is important because ljishas avoid excess calories,
which can lead to increased weight and triglyceridewno factors that can put you
at higher risk of obesity, heart attack and stroke.

The AHA suggests women limit their intake of addedars to 6 teaspoons daily;
men should limit intake to 9 teaspoons. The recontagons do not apply to
naturally occurring sugars, such as those foundruits, vegetables or dairy
products.

Check food label ingredients for hidden sugars ¢ti&en syrup, fructose, dextrose,
molasses or evaporated cane juice.

http://www.publix.com/wellness/greenwise/productefRictDetail.do?id=1930

93. Similarly, Atkins Nutritionals, the company behirtie Atkins line of fooqg

products states:

Finding Added Sugars

Taking control of your health is about focusingaambohydrate foods that are high
in nutrients and fiber. That's why added sugarny &rm should be avoided in
the weight loss phases of Atkins. No matter whataalled sugar has virtually no
nutritional value.
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What's the Difference?

Naturally occurring sugarsfound in dairy products or in fruit or vegetablésy,
instance, are an organic part of the food, and Hreyperfectly acceptable. An
example: sugar free ice cream has some naturatiyroeg sugars from the milk
and cream with which it is made. That same icerore@ght also include some
strawberries (which contain fruit sugar). Both gggare natural, making the ice
cream suitable for healthy lifestyles.

Added sugarturk in many foods and not just in the form of sage (table sugar).
Added sugar is often disguised with misleading remepackaged foods. These
include cane sugar and evaporated cane juice, bsagar, beet sugar or any other
ingredient ending in “sugar,” as well as syrups ggrup solids) such as maple,
corn or cane. Many ingredients ending in “ose” aleo sugars, although
exceptions include sucralose and cellulose.

To complicate matters, a natural sugar, such agdse, is considered an added
sugar from a regulatory point of view and can ats@ the form of an added sugar
when it's included in processed foods. The Nutnitiéacts panel tells you the

number of grams of sugars in a serving, but becalgemps together all sugars, it

does not distinguish between integral and addedrsunstead, you'll need to go

to the ingredients list. If you see fructose listestead of fruit, for example, even

though that sugar has a natural source, you'll kiitsvan added ingredient you

should limit your exposure to. Here are varioussds for added sugars: brown
sugar, cane syrup, corn sweetener, corn syrup, sgrap solids, dextrose,

fructose, fruit juice concentrate, galactose, ghecohigh-fructose corn syrup,

honey, invert sugar, lactose, malt, maltose, myalis maple syrup, molasses, raw
sugar, rice syrup, and sucrose.

http://www.atkins.com/Science/Articles---Library/@ar/Finding-Added-Sugars.aspx

94. Lifeway's food products with ECJ as an ingrediemvehsignificant added sugar.

This added sugar is hidden from consumers, sutheaBlaintiff, by Lifeway’s unlawful practic
of using the false and misleading term “evaporai@ae juice” in the ingredient lists of its fo
products instead of the term sugar which is theenamandated by state and federal law.
labeling laws violated by Lifeway were designed éasure that consumers receive
information they need to make informed decisionghed, for example, consumers looking
added sugar can find it when they look for it ie thgredient list.

95.  The Plaintiff would not have bought the Lifewaytsofl products he bought had
known they contained “added sugar.” Although PI#finead the ingredient lists of the Lifewa
food products he purchased, he did not realizeehaporated cane juice was 1) sugar or a S\
2) a form of added sugar; 3) a refined sugar onat)a juice. Plaintiff's failure to realize th

evaporated cane juice was 1) sugar or a syrup;f@naof added sugar; 3) a refined sugar o
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not a juice was reasonable and any reasonable m@nsuould have been mislead by the fa
and misleading term evaporated cane juice.

96. Plaintiff would not have bought the Lifeway foododucts he purchased if he h
known they contained an added sugar or syrup;iaectiugar or sweetener; or that evapor
cane juice was not a juice but rather sugar orpsgnd an added sugar and a refined sweet
The Nutrition Facts panels of the Lifeway food prots purchased by Plaintiff did not reveal
presence of added sugars, and the false and miglet&fm “evaporated cane juice” in t

ingredient list concealed the presence of any addgdr or refined sugar.

lse

ad
ated
ener.
the
he

97. When Plaintiff read the ingredient list, he did metlize that there was added

sugar in the Defendant’s food products becauseidheat recognize the term “ECJ” as be

ng

sugar because the term (which the FDA has heleta false and misleading term) misled him.

ECJ was not the common or usual term for the ingredn question which was actually a refin
form of sugar or cane syrup. Defendant’s use i@ that included the word juice, but not
words sugar or syrup, failed to accurately charatethe ingredient in question and the F
concurs with this allegation. While Plaintiff couttetermine the total amount of sugars in
product from the nutritional facts table assumingas accurate, he could not determine if tf
were any added sugars/syrups because the Defendagredient lists concealed the presenc
such added sugars by the use of a the false andauhiisg term “ECJ.” Plaintiff could also n
determine the relative amount of any added sugzsause the term “ECJ” was not recognize
him as a sugar and thus its relative position enitlgredient list (where ingredients are requ
to be listed in descending order by weight) didinfdrm him of the level of added sugar.

98. Defendant’s failure to utilize either the term “su§ or the term “syrup” td

describe the ingredient it identified as evaporatade juice failed to reveal the basic naturs

ed
he
DA
the
ere
e of
ot

| by

red

b Of

the ingredient and its characterizing properties, (that the ingredients are sugars or syrups).

According to the FDA:

FDA'’s regulatory approach for the nomenclaturewgfas and syrups is that sugar
is a solid, dried, and crystallized food; wheregsig is an aqueous solution or
liquid food. FDA'’s regulations permit the term “suj as part of the name for
food that is solid, dried, and crystallized, speaity the standards of identity for
dextrose monohydrate (21 CFR 168.111) and lact®dseCFR 168.122), and the
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GRAS regulation for sucrose (21 CFR 184.1854). FbAggulations provide for
the terms “syrup” or “sirup” for food that is ligqliior is an aqueous solution,
specifically the standards of identity for glucosieup (21 CFR 168.120), cane
sirup (21 CFR 168.130), maple sirup (21 CFR 168,14@rghum sirup, (21 CFR
168.160), and table sirup (21 CFR 168.180). FDépproach is consistent with
the common understanding of sugar and syrup aserefed in a dictionary.

99. Based on the inclusion of the word “evaporatedthie term evaporated cane jui
Plaintiff would show that the sweetener in the Defant's food products is sugar, a dr
crystallized ingredient, as defined in 21 C.F.R1@l.4(b)(20) and 21 C.F.R. § 184.18
However, even if the added sugar was a form of camep, it would make no difference.

either case, the Defendant utilized a false andeadsng term, “evaporated cane juice”,

to

conceal the fact that Defendant was utilizing ade@dsugar to sweeten its products. In either

case the false and misleading term, “evaporated paoe,” failed to reveal the basic nature

the ingredient and its characterizing propertigs, hat the ingredients are sugars or syrups).
100. While FDA regulations provide that “[tihe name af angredient shall be

specific name and not a collective (generic) nathe’regulations expressly provide that “[f]

purposes of ingredient labeling, the tersugar” shall refer to sucrose, which is obtained fr

sugar cane or sugar beets in accordance with tdwsprns of 184.1854 of this chapter. 21 C.R.

8 101.4(b)(20)(emphasis in original). 21 C.F.R.84.1854 list the chemical names, CAS num
and structure of sugar/sucrose (C12 H22 O11, CA$ Re. 57-50-11-1f-D-fructofuranosyle-

D-glucopyranoside) as well as its common namesafsigyicrose, cane sugar, or beet sugar).

C.F.R. 8 184.1854 also confirms that the definibbisugar/sucrose covers products “obtaine
crystallization from sugar cane or sugar beet julcat has been extracted by pressing
diffusion, then clarified and evaporated.” As su@gfendant was required to identify t
ingredient in question as sugar and could notitallaporated cane juice.

101. The term “sugar’ indicates to reasonable consuntlees ingredient “sugar.
Similarly, the term “syrup” connotes a type of stezer that contains sugar. “Syrup” is defir
by numerous dictionaries as some variation of “aceatrated solution of sugar in water,”
concentrated solution of sugar in water;” “a conaed solution of a sugar, such as sucros

water;” “a thick sticky liquid consisting of a cogmtrated solution of sugar and water;” “a v

First Amended Class Action and Representative

Action Complaint for Equitable and Injunctive -33- Case No. CV 3:13-CV-4828-TEH

of

a
or

om

ber

21

1 by

or

Relief



Case3:13-cv-04828-TEH Document23 Filed12/20/13 Page34 of 71

sweet, thick light colored liquid made by dissolyisugar in water;” “a sweet liquid made from
sugar and water;” etc. Thus, had the Defendant ueedvords “sugar” or “syrup” to describe the
ingredient it described as evaporated cane juice&ould have informed consumers of the
presence of added sugar. The Defendant’s failutdiliae either term concealed the presencg of
added sugars in the Defendant’s food products.
102. Defendant further concealed the presence of addgars in its food products by
utilizing the false and misleading term “evaporataghe juice” to describe an added sweetener

that was notn fact “juice,” but was rather “sugar.” According the FDA:

© 00 N o o -~ w N Pk

N N N N N DN DN NN R R R R R R R R Rp R
0o ~N o U1~ W N B O © 0O N O U1~ W N R O

The product extracted from sugar cane is eithegdsu(21 CFR §101.4(b)(20)
and 8§ 184.1854), or "cane syrup" if the productfeons to the standard of
identity for "cane sirup" (21 CFR 8168.130).... Theseeeteners should not be
declared in the ingredient declaration by name<lwbuggest that the ingredients
are juice, e.g "evaporated juice" or "nectar",rosuch a way as to suggest that the
ingredients contain no sugar, e.g."natural exwéct'. Such representations .... fail
to reveal the basic nature of the food and its attarizing properties, i.e. the
ingredients are sugar or syrups. They are not juice .. As you know, many of
FDA's criminal prosecutions of manufacturers antkwes of fruit juices for
economic adulteration have involved precisely theseeeteners being
misrepresented in such a way as to mislead consumer.We trust that the
foregoing will be helpful in providing guidance dhe appropriate labeling of
these ingredients.

http://lwww.reqgulations.gov/#!documentDetail;: D=FDAD-D-0430-0005

103. The FDA has repeatedly made clear that:

FDA'’s current policy is that sweeteners derivedrfrsugar cane syrup should not
be declared as “evaporated cane juice” becausdeimtfalsely suggests that the
sweeteners are juice.... “Juice” is defined by 21 CER®.1(a) as “the aqueous
liquid expressed or extracted from one or moretsrar vegetables, purees of the
edible portions of one or more fruits or vegetap@asany concentrates of such
liquid or puree.” Although FDA does not disputettsagar cane is a member of
the vegetable kingdom in the broad sense of clasgifan article as “animal,”
“vegetable,” or “mineral,” the agency considers téen “vegetable” in the context
of the juice definition to refer more narrowly tdilele plant parts that consumers
are accustomed to eating as vegetables in theirSiigar cane is not a vegetable
in this sense. While consumers can purchase pafcgggar cane, consumers do
not eat sugar cane as a “vegetable” but insteaditus® a source of sugar by
chewing on the cane or its fibers or by placingdaee in a beverage to sweeten it.
There are other plant juices used for human foatl shmilarly are not “vegetable
juice” or “fruit juice” for purposes of the juiceefinition; e.g., maple syrup and
sorghum syrup. In summary, FDA’s view is that thie¢ or extract of sugar cane
is not the juice of a plant that consumers are stooned to eating as a vegetable in
their diet and is not, therefore, “juice” as conpated by the regulation defining
that term.
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http://www.fda.gov/Food/GuidanceRequlation/GuidddeeumentsReqgulatorylnformation/Lab

ingNutrition/ucm181491.htm

104. The FDA has further confirmed that:

“evaporated cane juice” and other sweeteners diffren sugar cane syrup are
not “juice” as defined in 21 CFR 120.1.Sweeteners derived from sugar cane
syrup should not be listed in the ingredient dedlan by names which suggest
that the ingredients are juice, such as “evaporeae@ juice.” FDA considers such
representations to be false and misleading undgiose403(a)(1) of the Act (21
U.S.C. 343(a)(1)) because they fail to reveal thsidonature of the food and its
characterizing properties (i.e., that the ingretfieme sugars or syrups) as required
by 21 CFR 102.5 ... sweeteners derived from sugae sgrup are not juice...

105. It was thus false and misleading for the Defendantise the term “evaporated

cane juice” to identify the added sugar derivedmfrgugar cane it used as an ingredi
Moreover, reasonable consumers do not considez joibe a sugar or syrup or a refined su
Thus, it was false and misleading for the Defendanise the term “evaporated cane juice
describe the refined sugar (or in the alternatiwves its food products used as a sweetener.
do reasonable consumers consider juice to be aadasldgar. To the contrary, consumers

instructed by the federal government and othetiestihat if they wish to avoid added sugar t

Nor
are

ey

should look for juice because juice is not an adsieghr, nor does it contain added sugar and is

thus a way to avoid added sugars. Thus, it wae fahsl misleading for the Defendant to use|the

term “evaporated cane juice” to describe the adaggr in its food products used as a sweetener.

106. Moreover, it is clear that the term “evaporatedecance” was intended to, and

did, mislead consumers about the presence of sulgafact, industry participants have ope
discussed this act.

107. For example, the in-house magazine for Whole F@oatsch has been sued for t
illegal and deceptive use of the term “ECJ”) camtaan article entitled “Could Cane Ju

Evaporate?” which details the following:

A regulatory issue on the U.S. Food and Drug Adstiation’s (FDA)
backburner, and one that is therefore flying uiderradar, involves the fate of the
sweetener evaporated cane juice. Like high fructmsa syrup’s ongoing name
battle, this is a question of language, not sultstaAccording to Jim Morano,
Ph.D., technical affiliate of Suzanne’s Speciajtidsw Brunswick, NJ, FDA has
taken exception to the use of the word “juice” &sctibe this sugar cane-based
sweetener on product labels.....The agency feelstligaterm fails to reveal the
defining property of the sweetener, that the ingnet$ are sugars or syrups, and so
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the term may be false and misleading to consumer.

“It's only been the last 15 years that we've hhd #ability to use sugar. In the
beginning in the health food industry, sugar wésd word,” says Morano. Sugar
was often considered to be a violation of the rattenet, even though it is, of
course, natural. Though times have changed, tlgative connotation still clings
to sugar for many shoppers. Therefore, if FDA takesy the term “evaporated
cane juice,” essentially dictating that it be rederto as a type of cane sugar,
Morano believes the jig may be up for this sweateaeleast when it comes the
natural market.
http://www.wholefoodsmagazine.com/grocery/featigwsketeners-rising

108. Similarly, according to the CEO of ASSURKKAR Sudgammpany in Costa Rici

which provides raw sugar to U.S. companies, thm ter wrongly used in the food indust
"prostituted” he put it. "Nowadays the food comganare trying to sell more 'natural’ produ

so they use the most impressive or high impact iugrtb call the customers' attention,'he

Y,

CtS,

said. In reality, the "evaporated cane juice" thatsed in food products is a very processed form

of sugar, unequivocally the same as refined whigas

http://www.processedfreeamerica.org/index.php?optom content&view=article&id=535:ra

-sugar
109. Additionally, Judy Sanchez, a spokesperson forUtfe. Sugar Corp.confirms

that "All sugar is evaporated cane juice,” "Thestjuse that for a natural-sounding name f

product.” http://www.npr.org/blogs/thesalt/2012/10/18/163098/2vaporated-cane-juice-sug

in-disquise
110. Defendant’'s use of the word “cane” was not suffitieo advise Plaintiff thg
“evaporated cane juice” was sugar. The term “casaiot exclusively a reference to sugar

sugar cane. Many other types of cane exist andsaeé in foods, for example, bamboo cane

ar-

—

or

and

sorghum cane, both which produce juice. See &.6..E.R. 8§ 168.160 (“sorghum cane”). Corn is

a form of cane. There are over 1000 species justaoiboo and over 10,000 members of
family of plants that includes corn and sugar cddest common berries such as blackberr
raspberries, blue berries and goji berries groveames and are referred to as “cane berries
course, Defendant utilized the term “cane” with teem “juice,” a defined, regulated term r
commonly associated with sugar or added sugar.

111. Moreover, the cane sugar utilized as an ingredmntLifeway was far remove
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from natural sugar cane or unrefined sugar came jiNatural sugar cane is described by soy
as healthy and nutritious, containing vitamins, enals, enzymes, fibers, and phytonutrients
help the body digest naturally occurring sugarghsas lactose, glucose and fructose. It als
reported to contain vitamins A, C, B1l, B2, B6, mcand pantothenic acid, which wo
synergistically with the minerals to nourish thedpo Sugar cane also reportedly contain
unique mix of antioxidant polyphenols. The polypblsnvitamins, and minerals present in su

cane are claimed to help slow down the absorptioth@® sugars and prevent the sharp ris

blood sugar levels associated with refined sugaBimilarly, raw sugar cane juice has be

described as a “wonder food” that has many beréfigioperties. For example, one web

states:

Sugarcane is a tall grass with a stout, jointedfdordus stalk that looks similar to
bamboo. As a member of the grass family, its jinas a high potency equivalent
to wheatgrass juice, only with less chlorophyll andre sugar content. However,
counter to what you might think, sugarcane juicetams only about fifteen
percent total sugar content, all of which is iraa unrefined form. The rest of the
juice consists of water brimming with an abundaon€esitamins and minerals.
Sugarcane is rich in calcium, chromium, cobalt,pyp magnesium, manganese,
phosphorous, potassium and zinc. It also contaorsand vitamins A, C, B1, B2,
B3, B5, and B6, plus a high concentration of phytaents (including
chlorophyll), antioxidants, proteins, soluble fiband numerous other health
supportive compounds. Working synergistically, #hesutrients provide a
supremely health-promoting food which has beenistutbr its role in fighting
cancer, stabilizing blood sugar levels in diabetiassisting in weight loss,
reducing fevers, clearing the kidneys, preventmgtht decay, and a host of other
health benefits.

http://www.processedfreeamerica.org/index.php?optom content&view=article&id=535:ra

-sugar The “evaporated cane juice” in the Lifeway’s fqmabducts contains none of these he
benefits because during processing the nutriers baen pressed, boiled and strained’out.
112. Thus, evaporated cane juice is neither “juice” molly subject to “evaporation” —

process that absent pressing, boiling, and separatould leave the sugar crystals with th

* SeeMcCaffree, D., The Truth About Evaporated CaneduProcessed-Free America (Nov
2010) available at http://www.processedfreeamerica.org/resourcedtineaws/405-the-truth
about-evaporated-cane-juice?format=pdf.

®> During refinement, the sugarcane juice is predsech the sugar cane and boiled at h
temperatures. The boiling destroys the enzymesnaady of the nutrients. The juice is th
separated into a sugar stream and a molasses sivieminof the minerals from the sugar cane

into the molasses, leaving the sugar stream viytuadid of nutrients. To further refine |
(removing any remaining nutrients), the sugar strés then crystallized through evaporation
McCaffree, D., The Truth About Evaporated Canegurrocessed-Free America (Nov. 1, 201
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nutrients still intact®ld. In truth, evaporated cane juice is little differéman added refined sugar.

Refined sugar and evaporated cane juice both hhvecalories per ounce. Both types of sugar

come from the same cane crop, and they are botlt 8866 sucrosd.€., empty calories) and n
the 15% sucrose content ascribed to raw sugarjoaes

113. Lifeway’s not only hides the sugar in its produisysusing the term illegal ECJ,
hides the fact that the ingredient it refers tcE&S) is a sweetener at all. For instance, Life
fails to even list evaporated cane juice in its siebinstead stating that its “Kefir products
sweetened with Organic Cane Sugar not High Fructosgorn  Syrup.’

http://www.lifeway.net/HealthWellness/Nutrition/Betingredients.aspx

114. Defendant’'s use of the term “evaporated cane juinésleads consumers into

paying a premium price for inferior or undesiralgredients or for products that contai

ingredients not listed on the label.

D. Defendant has Knowingly Violated Numerous Federaled California Laws
115. Defendant has violated California Health & Safetyd€ § 110390 which makes

unlawful to disseminate false or misleading foodeatisements or statements on products

product packaging, labeling or any other mediumduse directly or indirectly induce the

purchase of a food product.
116. Defendant has violated California Health & Safetyd€ § 110395 which makes
unlawful to manufacture, sell, deliver, hold oresfto sell any falsely advertised food.

117. Defendant has violated California Health & Safetyd€ 88 110398 and 1104

which make it unlawful to advertise misbranded fawdto deliver or proffer for delivery any

food that has been falsely advertised.
118. Defendant has violated California Health & Safetyd€ 8 110760 which makes

unlawful for any person to manufacture, sell, daljvhold, or offer for sale any food that

®d.

’ See id.(stating that “[a]nother important aspect of natwsugar cane is the balance of
different types of sugars. Raw natural sugar hdmlance of sucrose, glucose, and fruct

Dt

t

vay

are

n

it

and

it

it

S

the
pse,

whereas refined sugars are almost exclusively secfthe fructose and glucose have heen

washed out). The more sucrose, the more it raseshtood sugar”).
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misbranded.
119. Defendant has violated California Health & Safetyd€ 8 110765 which makes
unlawful for any person to misbrand any food.
120. Defendant has violated California Health & Safetyd€ § 110770 which makes
unlawful for any person to receive in commerce &nd that is misbranded or to deliver
proffer for delivery any such food.
121. Defendant has violated California Health & Safetyd€ § 110725 which makes
unlawful for any person to fail to list each ingiextt by its common and usual name.
122. Defendant has violated California Health & Safetyd€ § 110760 which makes
unlawful for any person manufacture, sell, deliveold or offer for sale any food that

misbranded.

E. Plaintiff Purchased Defendant’s Misbranded Food Prducts

it

it

or

it

it

S

123. Plaintiff cares about the nutritional content obdoand seeks to maintain a healthy

diet. During the Class Period, Plaintiff spent endhan twenty-five dollars ($25.00) on t
Purchased Products.
124. Plaintiff read and reasonably relied on the labefs Defendant’s Purchasg

Products before purchasing them as described heRdaintiff relied on Defendant’s labeling

described herein and based and justified the decigd purchase Defendant’s products) i

substantial part, on the label.

125. At point of sale, Plaintiff did not know, and had meason to know, that th

e

Purchased Products were unlawful and misbrandedtdsrth herein, and would not have bought

the product had he known the truth aboui.é&,, that the product was illegal to purchase
pOSSeSS.

126. After Plaintiff learned that Defendant's Purchas&dducts were falsely labelg
he stopped purchasing them.

127. As a result of Defendant’s unlawful misrepresenotati Plaintiff and thousands

and

d1

of

others in California and throughout the United &apurchased the Purchased Products and the

Substantially Similar Products at issue.
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128. Defendant’s labeling as alleged herein is falserargleading and was designed

increase sales of the products at issue. Defelsdamrepresentations are part of its system

labeling practice and a reasonable person wouldclattimportance to Defendant

misrepresentations in determining whether to pwsehhe products at issue.

129. A reasonable person would also attach importancenvtether Defendant’
products are “misbranded,” i.e., legally salabled acapable of legal possession, and
Defendant’s representations about these issuest@nndining whether to purchase the producf
issue. Plaintiff would not have purchased Defendamtoducts had they known they were
capable of being legally sold or held.

130. Plaintiffs purchases of the Purchased Products adgth Plaintiff becaus
misbranded products cannot be legally sold, posde$smve no economic value, and are leg

worthless.

Plaintiff Bob Figy

131. Plaintiff Figy cares about the nutritional conterfitfood and seeks to maintain

healthy diet. Starting approximately one year befhis suit was filed until shortly before hi

claims were filed, Plaintiff Figy read the labels ®efendant’s Misbranded Food Produ

including the Ingredient, “evaporated cane juickiras on the labels, before purchasing th

Based on those representations, Plaintiff purchasseral Lifeway food products at groce

stores and third-party retailers in and around Bamcisco, California. At point of sale, Plainti

did not know, and had no reason to know, that Dddatis “evaporated cane juice” claims w
unlawful and unauthorized as set forth herein. REaintiff known Defendant’s products that
purchased contained added sugar, he would not pax&hased the Products. As a res
Plaintiff suffered injury-in-fact and lost money.

132. Plaintiff would show that he seeks to avoid andfonimize added sugar in th
food products that he purchases. Plaintiff wouidve that at the time he read the labelg
Defendant’'s food products, he attempted to deteamainether Defendant’s food produ

contained “added sugar” by reading the ingrediisht He would further show that when he r¢

to

atic

o

[92)

to
S at

not

e

ally

e
of
ots

bad

the ingredient list of Defendant’s products to deiiee if sugar had been added as an ingredient,
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“sugar” was not listed, thus he was led to beli¢hat Defendant’'s food products that
purchased did not contain added sugar as an irgediHe did not know that the ingredié
“evaporated cane juice” was, in reality, sugarhat ime he made his purchase. Had he kn
“evaporated cane juice” was the same thing as addgdr or syrup, Plaintiff would not ha
purchased Defendant’s food products. Plaintiff ldoshow that while he did not know wh
evaporated cane juice was at the time he purchaséeshdant’s food products, because of
fact it used the term “juice”, it sounded like sameg healthy.

133. Plaintiff is not claiming that he believed ECJ waa$healthy sugar” or “healthig
form of sugar” at the time of purchase; but rathleat at the time of purchase he believed
was some type of ingredient that was healthier thayar due to its inclusion of the word ju
and its omission of the words sugar or syrup. At time of purchase he did not realize |

ingredient was sugar, let alone a refined suganaadded sugar. To the extent ECJ suggest

he
Nt

own

at

the

r
=CJ
ce
his

5 that

the product is derived from a juice, it plausibliggests that ECJ is healthier than refined sugars

and syrups and that products that contain ECJeakhher products than those that contain ac
sugar as an ingredient. Plaintiff alleges that &keled the term ECJ was a healthier term f{
sugar or syrup or conversely that sugar was analthier term than ECJ. While this equates
alleging that Plaintiff believed ECJ was healthif&an sugar, this is quite different, however, fr
alleging ECJ was a healthier form of sugar. In,f&iaintiff claims is that he was deceiv
because ECJ is really sugar or dried cane syrugsevpoesence as an ingredient was conce

from Plaintiff and not a claim that ECJ is a healtform of sugar. Plaintiff's allegation is th

ded
han
5 to
om
ed
raled

at

ECJ is really the same thing as sugar and therstooald have been labeled as sugar. Plaintiff

alleges that because Plaintiff was deceived aboutligihg healthier than sugar, he was dece
about Lifeway foods being healthier than other Emmanufacturer’s food products that list
sugar instead of ECJ. Plaintiff's purchasing decisi were affected by Lifeway's decept
practice of labeling sugar as ECJ. Plaintiff wishiedavoid added sugar or syrup added a
ingredient. He did not recognize ECJ as an addgdrsor syrup added as an ingredient.

134. Defendant’s labeling, advertising and marketingalsged herein are false a

misleading and were designed to increase saleshef products at issue. Defendar
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misrepresentations and material omissions are gfagn extensive labeling, advertising g
marketing campaign, and a reasonable person wottktha importance to Defendan
misrepresentations and material omissions in détémg whether to purchase the products
issue.

135. A reasonable person would also attach importancenvtether Defendant’
products were legal for sale, and capable of lpgakession, and to Defendant’s represental
about these issues in determining whether to pgechi@e products at issue. Plaintiff would
have purchased Defendant’s Misbranded Food Prodhacthe known they were not capable
being legally sold or held.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

136. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action parg to Federal Rule of Procedt

23(b)(2) and 23(b)(3) on behalf of the followingss:

All persons in the United States, or in the altéuea all persons in the state of
California who, within the last four years, purchdsDefendant’s food products:
(1) labeled with the ingredient, “Evaporated Camiee)’ (the “Class”).

137. The following persons are expressly excluded frawheClass: (1) Defendant a
its subsidiaries and affiliates; (2) all personsowhake a timely election to be excluded from
proposed Class; (3) governmental entities; andh@)Court to which this case is assigned an

staff.

138. This action can be maintained as a class actioausecthere is a well-defing

community of interest in the litigation and eacbgwsed Class is easily ascertainable.

139. Numerosity Based upon Defendant’s publicly available sdl#s with respect t
the misbranded products at issue, it is estimdiatidach Class numbers in the thousands
that joinder of all Class members is impracticable.

140. Common Questions Predominat&his action involves common questions of

and fact applicable to each Class member that predde over questions that affect o

nd

s

b at

S
tions
not

of

ire

the

d its

14

d

(@)

and

aw

nly

individual Class members. Thus, proof of a comrsenof facts will establish the right of egch

Class member to recover. Questions of law andci@timon to each Class member include:
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a. Whether Defendant engaged in unlawful, unfair deceptive business
practices by failing to properly package and latsefood products it sold tc
consumers;

b. Whether the food products at issue were misladiad a matter of law;

C. Whether Defendant made unlawful and misleadimgyedient claims with

respect to its food products sold to consumers;

d. Whether Defendant violated California Bus. & fPi@ode § 17200¢t seq

California Bus. & Prof. Code 8§ 17506t seq the Consumers Legal Remediges

Act, Cal. Civ. Code 8175@t seq, California Civ. Code 8§ 179@t seq, 15
U.S.C. § 2301et seq, and the Sherman Law;

e. Whether Plaintiff and the Class are entitledetitable and/or injunctive
relief;
f. Whether Defendant’s unlawful, unfair and/or datoee practices harmed

Plaintiff and the Class; and

g. Whether Defendant was unjustly enriched by étsegtive practices.

141. Typicality: Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims tfe members of eacgh

Class because Plaintiff bought Defendant’s MisbeahBood Products during the Class Perjod.

Defendant’s unlawful, unfair and/or fraudulent ano8 concern the same business prac

ices

described herein irrespective of where they occuoe were experienced. Plaintiff and each

Class sustained similar injuries arising out oféefant’'s conduct in violation of California la
The injuries of each member of each Class wereechusrectly by Defendant’s wrongf

conduct. In addition, the factual underpinningoafendant’s misconduct is common to all Cl

members of each class and represents a commor thfenisconduct resulting in injury to a

.
il
ASS

members of each Class. Plaintiff’ claims arisarfiihe same practices and course of conduct that

give rise to the claims of the member of each Céasbare based on the same legal theories.

142. Adequacy Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect theterests of each Clags.

Neither Plaintiff nor Plaintiff's counsel have amgerests that conflict with or are antagonisti¢ to

the interests of either Class’s members. Plaiht retained highly competent and experienced

class action attorneys to represent their integastisthose of the members of each Class. Plajntiff

and Plaintiffs counsel have the necessary findneaources to adequately and vigorously

litigate this class action, and Plaintiff and coelnasre aware of their fiduciary responsibilitie§ to

the members of each class and will diligently desge those duties by seeking the maximum
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possible recovery for each Class.

143. Superiority There is no plain, speedy or adequate remedygrothan by
maintenance of this class action. The prosecutiomdividual remedies by members of ea
Class will tend to establish inconsistent standafdsonduct for Defendant and result in
impairment of each Class member’s rights and tepadiition of their interests through actions
which they were not parties. Class action treatmvall permit a large number of similar

situated persons to prosecute their common clamasdingle forum simultaneously, efficient

ich
he
5 {0
y
Y,

and without the unnecessary duplication of efford @xpense that numerous individual actipns

would engender. Further, as the damages suffereddividual members of the Class may
relatively small, the expense and burden of indisidlitigation would make it difficult o
impossible for individual members of the Class @dress the wrongs done to them, while
important public interest will be served by addmegsthe matter as a class action. C
treatment of common questions of law and fact walkb be superior to multiple individu
actions or piecemeal litigation in that class tmeatt will conserve the resources of the Court
the litigants, and will promote consistency andogghcy of adjudication.

144. The prerequisites to maintaining a class actionif@ictive or equitable relie
pursuant to ED. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2) are met as Defendant has acted ore@fizsact on ground
generally applicable to each Class, thereby ma&ppyopriate final injunctive or equitable rel
with respect to each Class as a whole.

145. The prerequisites to maintaining a class actiosymmt to ED. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3)

be

-

an
ass
al

and

—

S

ef

are met as questions of law or fact common to ekds member predominate over any questions

affecting only individual members, and a classacis superior to other available methods
fairly and efficiently adjudicating the controversy

146. Plaintiff and Plaintiff’'s counsel are unaware oy atifficulties that are likely to b
encountered in the management of this action thlatldvpreclude its maintenance as a ¢

action.
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CAUSES OF ACTION

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Business and Professions Code § 172@0seq.
Unlawful Business Acts and Practices)

147. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each allegasenforth above.
148. Defendant’s conduct constitutes unlawful busine$s and practices.
149. Under California Law, unlawful injury causing coradusuch as Defendant

unlawful sale of an illegal product, is the onlgmlent necessary for the UCL claim. Plainti

claims here are based upon California law whichdentical to the federal laws California

adopted.

150. Defendant sold Plaintiff and the class the Purathdeducts and Substantia
Similar Products that were not capable of beingllggsold or possessed and have no econ
value and thus legally worthless. Plaintiff ane tblass lost money as a direct result
Defendant’s unlawful conduct. Plaintiff alleges tttree reviewed the labels on the respec
Purchased Products that he purchased, reasonéibly iresubstantial part on the labels, and
thereby deceived, in deciding to purchase thesegyats.

151. Defendant sold Misbranded Food Products, the PsechaProducts an
Substantially Similar Products in California andotiighout the United States during the C

Period.

152. Defendant is a corporation and, therefore, is as@@ within the meaning of the

Sherman Law.

153. Defendant’s business practices are unlawful und&7Z00,et seq by virtue of

'S

f's

<

DMIC
of
tive

vas

d

assS

Defendant’s violations of the advertising provisoof Article 3 of the Sherman Law and the

misbranded food provisions of Article 6 of the Shan Law.
154. Defendant’'s business practices are unlawful und&7Z00,et seq by virtue of
Defendant’s violations of 8 17508t seq. which forbids untrue and misleading advertising.
155. Defendant’s business practices are unlawful und&7Z00,et seq by virtue of

Defendant’s violations of the Consumers Legal Raasedct, Cal. Civ. Code § 1756f seq
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156. Defendant sold Plaintiff and the Class Misbrandedd-Products that were npot

capable of being sold, or legally held and whichreMegally worthless. Plaintiff and each Class

paid a premium price for the Misbranded Food Prtgluc
157. As a result of Defendant’s illegal business pragjdPlaintiff and the members

each Class, pursuant to Business and Professiates £tb7203, are entitled to an order enjoir

of

ng

such future conduct and such other orders and jedtgrwhich may be necessary to disgarge

Defendant’s ill-gotten gains and to restore to &ilgss Member any money paid for the

Misbranded Food Products.

158. Defendant’s unlawful business acts present a thaeat reasonable continu
likelihood of injury to Plaintiff and each Class mber.

159. As a result of Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiff arrek tmembers of each Cla

pursuant to Business and Professions Code 8§ 1d2@&ntitled to an order enjoining such fut

1%
o

U7
AL

ure

conduct by Defendant, and such other orders amginedts which may be necessary to disgorge

Defendant’s ill-gotten gains and restore any mopayd for Defendant’s Misbranded Fo

Products by Plaintiff and the members of each Class

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(Business and Professions Code 8 172@0seq.
Unfair Business Acts and Practices)

160. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each allegasenforth above.
161. Defendant’s conduct as set forth herein constitwiefir business acts a

practices.

162. Defendant sold Misbranded Food Products in Califoamd throughout the United

States during the Class Period.

163. Plaintiff and the members of each Class sufferadlzstantial injury by virtue g

pd

nd

—h

buying Defendant’'s Misbranded Food Products thaty tivould not have purchased absent

Defendant’s illegal conduct. Plaintiff alleges tha¢ reviewed the labels on the respective

Purchased Products that he purchased, reasonébly iresubstantial part on the labels, and

thereby deceived, in deciding to purchase thesgygts.
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164. Defendant's deceptive marketing, advertising, pgtig and labeling of it
Misbranded Food Products and its sale of unsalatidranded products that were illegal
possess, were of no benefit to consumers, and &ne ho consumers and competition
substantial.

165. Defendant sold Plaintiff and the members of eaclhs€lMisbranded Fog
Products that were not capable of being legally sol held and that were legally worthle
Plaintiff and the members of each Class paid a pr@nprice for the Misbranded Food Produc

166. Plaintiff and the members of each Class who pueghdefendant’s Misbrandg
Food Products had no way of reasonably knowing theatproducts were misbranded and w
not properly marketed, advertised, packaged andlddb and thus could not have reason:
avoided the injury each of them suffered.

167. The consequences of Defendant's conduct as set fogtein outweigh an
justification, motive or reason therefor. Defentimmonduct is, and continues to be, unlaw
unscrupulous, contrary to public policy, and issgahtially injurious to Plaintiff and the membg
of each Class.

168. As a result of Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiff ariek tmembers of each Cla
pursuant to Business and Professions Code § 1@d28&ntitled to an order enjoining such fut
conduct by Defendant, and such other orders argipedts which may be necessary to disgc
Defendant’s ill-gotten gains and restore any mopayd for Defendant’s Misbranded Fo

Products by Plaintiff and the members of each Class

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Business and Professions Code 8§ 172@0se0.
Fraudulent Business Acts and Practices)

169. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each allegatienforth above.

170. Defendant’s conduct as set forth herein constitér@sdulent business practic
under California Business and Professions Codéosiscg 17200et seq.

171. Defendant sold Misbranded Food Products in Califoamd throughout the Unite

First Amended Class Action and Representative
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States during the Class Period.

172. Defendant's misleading marketing, advertising, paikg and labeling of th
Misbranded Food Products and misrepresentationsnaterial omissions that the products w
capable of sale, capable of possession and notranided were likely to deceive reasona

consumers, and in fact, Plaintiff and the membémrmsagh Class were deceived. Plaintiff alle

e
ere
ble

nes

that he reviewed the labels on the respective Rgezh Products that he purchased, reasoIably

relied in substantial part on the labels, and viiesetby deceived, in deciding to purchase t
products. Defendant has engaged in fraudulent bssiacts and practices.

173. Defendant’s fraud and deception caused Plaintidfthe members of each Clasg
purchase Defendant’'s Misbranded Food Productsthiegt would otherwise not have purcha
had they known the true nature of those products.

174. Defendant sold Plaintiff and the members of eaclhs€lMisbranded Fog
Products that were not capable of being sold oalkedield and that were legally worthle
Plaintiff and the members of each Class paid a pr@nprice for the Misbranded Food Produc

175. As a result of Defendant’s conduct as set fortreimerPlaintiff and each Clas
pursuant to Business and Professions Code 8§ 1d28&ntitled to an order enjoining such fut
conduct by Defendant, and such other orders arghjedts which may be necessary to disgc
Defendant’s ill-gotten gains and restore any mopayd for Defendant’s Misbranded Fo

Products by Plaintiff and the members of each Class

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Business and Professions Code 8 175@0seq.
Misleading and Deceptive Advertising)

176. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each allegasenforth above.

177. Plaintiff asserts this cause of action for violagoof California Business ar
Professions Code § 1750t seqfor misleading and deceptive advertising agddefendant.

178. Defendant sold Misbranded Food Products in Califoamd throughout the Unite
States during the Class Period.

179. Defendant engaged in a scheme of offering DeferglaMisbranded Foo

First Amended Class Action and Representative

Action Complaint for Equitable and Injunctive -48- Case No. CV 3:13-CV-4828-TEH

ese

\24
n

[S.

ure

rge

pd

d

d

Relief



© 00 N o o -~ w N Pk

N N N N N DN DN NN R R R R R R R R Rp R
0o ~N o U1~ W N B O © 0O N O U1~ W N R O

Case3:13-cv-04828-TEH Document23 Filed12/20/13 Page49 of 71

Products for sale to Plaintiff and the members a¢heClass by way ofinter alia, product

packaging and labeling, and other promotional neter These materials misrepresented and/or

omitted the true contents and nature of Defendavisbranded Food Products. Defenda
advertisements and inducements were made withiifioGah and throughout the United Sta
and come within the definition of advertising asmt@ined in Business and Professions G
817500,et seq.in that such product packaging and labeling, araimptional materials wer
intended as inducements to purchase Defendant’bréhged Food Products and are statem
disseminated by Defendant to Plaintiff and the memlof each Class that were intended to r¢
the members of each Class. Defendant knew, drarexercise of reasonable care should |

known, that these statements were misleading aceptige as set forth herein. Plaintiff alleg

nt's
[es
ode
e
ents
pach
nave

es

that he reviewed the labels on the respective Rgezh Products that he purchased, reasoIably

relied in substantial part on the labels, and viiesetby deceived, in deciding to purchase t
products.

180. In furtherance of its plan and scheme, Defendaepamed and distributed with
California and nationwide via product packaging &adaeling, and other promotional materié
statements that misleadingly and deceptively remtesl the composition and the nature
Defendant’s Misbranded Food Products. Plaintitf #re members of each Class necessarily
reasonably relied on Defendant’s materials, ance ez intended targets of such representati

181. Defendant’s conduct in disseminating misleading aedeptive statements
California and nationwide to Plaintiff and the masrdbof each Class was and is likely to dec
reasonable consumers by obfuscating the true catiggnand nature of Defendant’s Misbrand
Food Products in violation of the “misleading prborgg California Business and Professid
Code 8§ 17500t seq

182. As a result of Defendant’s violations of the “madiéng prong” of Californiz
Business and Professions Code 8§ 17%00seq. Defendant has been unjustly enriched at
expense of Plaintiff and the members of each Cladisbranded products cannot be legally s
or held and are legally worthless. Plaintiff ahd thembers of each Class paid a premium f

for the Misbranded Food Products.

First Amended Class Action and Representative

Action Complaint for Equitable and Injunctive -49- Case No. CV 3:13-CV-4828-TEH

ese

n

—

S,
of
and
DNS.
in
bive
ed

ns

]
the
old

Drice

Relief



© 00 N o o -~ w N Pk

N N N N N DN DN NN R R R R R R R R Rp R
0o ~N o U1~ W N B O © 0O N O U1~ W N R O

Case3:13-cv-04828-TEH Document23 Filed12/20/13 Page50 of 71

183. Plaintiff and the members of each Class, pursuarBusiness and Professig
Code § 17535, are entitled to an order enjoininghsuture conduct by Defendant, and s
other orders and judgments which may be necessatiggiorge Defendant’s ill-gotten gains &
restore any money paid for Defendant’s MisbrandeddHProducts by Plaintiff and the memb

of each Class.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Business and Professions Code 8 175@0seq.
Untrue Advertising)

184. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each allegatienforth above.

185. Plaintiff asserts this cause of action against Dedat for violations of Californi
Business and Professions Code § 17808¢q. regarding untrue advertising.

186. Defendant sold Misbranded Food Products in Califoamd throughout the Unite
States during the Class Period.

187. Defendant engaged in a scheme of offering DeferglaMisbranded Foo
Products for sale to Plaintiff and the members aifheClass by way of product packaging
labeling, and other promotional materials. Thesgenals misrepresented and/or omitted the
contents and nature of Defendant’s Misbranded FRiodiucts. Defendant’s advertisements
inducements were made in California and throughbat United States and come within
definition of advertising as contained in Businasd Professions Code §175@0seqin that the
product packaging and labeling, and promotionalent were intended as inducements
purchase Defendant’s Misbranded Food Productsaemdtatements disseminated by Defen
to Plaintiff and the members of each Class. Dedah#énew, or in the exercise of reasonable
should have known, that these statements wereauntru

188. In furtherance of its plan and scheme, Defendaepamed and distributed
California and nationwide via product packaging éadukling, and other promotional materiz
statements that falsely advertise the compositfdbefendant’s Misbranded Food Products,
falsely misrepresented the nature of those produRlaintiff and the members of each Class W
the intended targets of such representations anddweasonably be deceived by Defenda

First Amended Class Action and Representative

Action Complaint for Equitable and Injunctive -50- Case No. CV 3:13-CV-4828-TEH

ns
ich
\nd

ers

je 8

d

and
true
and

he

to

Jant

care

n

[—

S,
and
ere

nt's

Relief



© 00 N o o -~ w N Pk

N N N N N DN DN NN R R R R R R R R Rp R
0o ~N o U1~ W N B O © 0O N O U1~ W N R O

Case3:13-cv-04828-TEH Document23 Filed12/20/13 Page51 of 71

materials. Plaintiff alleges that he reviewed thleels on the respective Purchased Productg that

he purchased, reasonably relied in substantial grarthe labels, and was thereby deceived, i

deciding to purchase these products.

189. Defendant’s conduct in disseminating untrue ads¥gi throughout California

deceived Plaintiff and the members of each Classlifiyscating the contents, nature and quality

of Defendant’s Misbranded Food Products in violatiof the “untrue prong” of California
Business and Professions Code 8§ 17500.
190. As a result of Defendant’s violations of the “ur@rprong” of California Business

and Professions Code 8§ 175@®,seq. Defendant has been unjustly enriched at the eseef

Plaintiff and the members of each Class. Misbrdmateducts cannot be legally sold or held and

are legally worthless. Plaintiff and the membefsach Class paid a premium price for the

Misbranded Food Products.

191. Plaintiff and the members of each Class, pursuarBusiness and Professigns

Code § 17535, are entitled to an order enjoininghsuture conduct by Defendant, and such

other orders and judgments which may be necessatiggorge Defendant’s ill-gotten gains and

restore any money paid for Defendant’s Misbrandedd™Products by Plaintiff and the membgrs

of each Class.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Consumers Legal Remedies Act, Cal. Civ. Code 8175 seq.)

192. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each allegatienforth above.

193. This cause of action is brought pursuant to the &LR

194. On November 19, 2013, Plaintiff Figy provided Defant with notice pursuant {o
Cal. Civ. Code § 1782.

195. Consequently, Plaintiff and the members of eactshre entitled to actual apd

punitive damages against Defendant for its viofegiof the CLRA. In addition, pursuant to Qal.

Civ. Code 8§ 1782(a)(2), Plaintiff and the membefeach Class will be entitled to an order

enjoining the above-described acts and practicesyiging restitution to Plaintiff and the

members of each Class, ordering payment of codisa#tiorneys’ fees, and any other relief
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deemed appropriate and proper by the Court pursaddal. Civ. Code 8§ 1780.
196. Defendant’s actions, representations and condu keolated, and continue
violate the CLRA, because they extend to transastibat are intended to result, or which h

resulted, in the sale of goods to consumers.

197. Defendant sold Misbranded Food Products in Califoamd throughout the United

States during the Class Period.

198. Plaintiff and the members of each Class are “comssias that term is defined
the CLRA in Cal. Civ. Code 81761(d).

199. Defendant’s Misbranded Food Products were and gweds” within the meanin

of Cal. Civ. Code 81761(a).

o

ave

200. By engaging in the conduct set forth herein, Defenidhas violated and continues

to violate Sections 1770(a)(5) of the CLRA, (beealxfendant’s conduct constitutes un
methods of competition and unfair or fraudulentsamt practices in that they misrepresent
particular ingredients, characteristics, uses, fitsrend quantities of the goods.

201. By engaging in the conduct set forth herein, Deéendsiolated and continues
violate Section 1770(a)(7) of the CLRA, becauseeddant’s conduct constitutes unfair meth
of competition and unfair or fraudulent acts orqgbices in that they misrepresent the partic
standard, quality or grade of the goods.

202. By engaging in the conduct set forth herein, Deéendsiolated and continues
violate Section 1770(a)(9) of the CLRA, becauseelddant’s conduct constitutes unfair meth
of competition and unfair or fraudulent acts orgbices in that they advertise goods with

intent not to sell the goods as advertised.

air

the

nds

blar

Dds

the

203. By engaging in the conduct set forth herein, Defendhas violated and continues

to violate Section 1770(a)(16) of the CLRA, becaldfendant’s conduct constitutes unfair

methods of competition and unfair or fraudulentsaat practices in that they represent th

At a

subject of a transaction has been supplied in daoge with a previous representation when it

has not.

204. Plaintiff alleges that he reviewed the labels o taspective Purchased Produycts
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that he purchased, reasonably relied in substgdialon the labels, and was thereby deceive

deciding to purchase these products.

205. Plaintiff requests that the Court enjoin Defendmai continuing to employ the

unlawful methods, acts and practices alleged hgrersuant to Cal. Civ. Code § 1780(a)(2).
Defendant is not restrained from engaging in thesetices in the future, Plaintiff and t

members of each Class will continue to suffer harm.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Breach Of Express Warranty)

206. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the abdegations as if fully set fort
herein.

207. Defendant’s affirmations of fact and/or promisdsatiag to their Misbranded Fog
Products created express written warranties thatpttoducts would conform to Defendan

affirmations of fact and/or promises.

—

d

208. Alternatively, Defendant’s descriptions of theirddranded Food Products became

part of the bases of the bargains, creating expres®n warranties that the products purcha

sed

by Plaintiff and the other Class members would oonf to Defendant’'s descriptions and

specifications.

209. In fact, the Misbranded Food Products purchasedlamtiff did not so conform.

210. Defendant provided written warranties that its Masizled Food Products we
labeled in compliance with state and federal lah @ere not misbranded under state and fec
law. Defendant breached these express written n@#sa The Plaintiff and the Class were Th
party beneficiaries of the Defendant’s warrantiBefendant breached these express wr
warranties.

211. As a result of the foregoing, Plaintiff and the eatiClass members have suffe
damages, in that the value of the products theghased was less than warranted by Defendze

212. Plaintiff asserts this cause of action for violasoof the laws of state and fede
law pertaining to express warranties.

213. Defendant engaged in a scheme of offering Misbrarfeeod Products for sale
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Plaintiff and members of the Class by way of, iraéa, product packaging and labeling, and
other promotional materials.

214. In furtherance of its plan and scheme, Defendagpamed and distributed withjn
California and nationwide via product packaging éadakling, and other promotional materigls,
statements that misleadingly and deceptively represi the composition and nature | of
Misbranded Food Products.

215. Plaintiff and the Class were the intended targétioh representations.

216. Plaintiff and the Class reasonably relied on Defentd representations.

217. Plaintiff and the Class were injured as a resultDefendant’s breach of their
express warranties about Misbranded Food Products.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Breach Of Implied Warranty Of Merchantability)

218. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the abdiegadions as if fully set forth
herein.

219. Implied in the purchase of Misbranded Food Prodbgt®laintiff and the Class |s
the warranty that the purchased products are lghkan be lawfully resold.

220. Defendant knowingly and intentionally misbranded\tisbranded Food Products.

221. Defendant knew those Misbranded Food Products iNegal.

222. When Defendant sold those products they impliedyranted that the produgts
were legal and could be lawfully resold.

223. Plaintiff would not have knowingly purchased protuthat were illegal and
unsellable.

224. No reasonable consumer would knowingly purchasdymts that are illegal and
unsellable.

225. The purchased Misbranded Food Products were wnifithe ordinary purpose for
which Plaintiff and the Class purchased them.

226. In fact, these Misbranded Food Products were illegaisbranded, and
economically worthless.

Gase No. CV 313.Cv4g25 T
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227. As a result, Plaintiff and the Class were injurédotigh their purchase of an

unsuitable, useless, illegal, and unsellable produc

228. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff and the Classe damaged in the amount

they paid for Misbranded Food Products.

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Negligent Misrepresentation)

229. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the abdegations as if fully set fort
herein.

230. In making representations of fact to Plaintiff aihe other Class members ab
their Misbranded Food Products, Defendant failedutbll their duties to disclose the mater
facts alleged above. Such failure to disclose @ ghrt of Defendant amounts to neglig
misrepresentation.

231. Plaintiff and the other Class members, as a digu proximate cause
Defendant’s negligent misrepresentations, reasgmabéd upon such misrepresentations to t
detriment. By reason thereof, Plaintiff and theeot€@lass members have suffered damages

amount to be proved at trial.
TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Negligence)

232. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the abdegations as if fully set fort
herein.

233. In making representations of fact to Plaintiff aihe other Class members ab
their Misbranded Food Products, Defendant failethedfully label or advertise their Misbrand
Food Products and violated their duties to disctbsematerial facts alleged above. Such con
on the part of Defendant amounts to negligence.

234. Plaintiff and the other Class members, as a disu proximate cause

—

DUt
al

ent

Df
heir

n an

—

Dut

19%
o

duct

Defendant’s negligence, reasonably relied upon segptesentations to their detriment. By reason

thereof, Plaintiff and the other Class members lsafkered damages.

235. As described above, Defendant’s actions violatetumber of express statutory

provisions designed to protect Plaintiff and theasSl Defendant’s illegal actions constitute

First Amended Class Action and Representative
Action Complaint for Equitable and Injunctive
Relief
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negligence per se. Moreover, the statutory fooelia and misbranding provisions violated
Defendant are strict liability provisions.

236. As alleged above, Plaintiff and the Class wereraguby Defendant’'s statuto
violations and are entitled to recover an amourtte¢aletermined at trial due to the injuries

loss they suffered as a result of Defendant’s gegke.

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unjust Enrichment)

237. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the abdegations as if fully set fort
herein.

238. As a result of Defendant's unlawful and deceptivdions described abov
Defendant were enriched at the expense of Plaiatiff the Class through the payment of
purchase price for Misbranded Food Products.

239. Under the circumstances, it would be against equnty good conscience to peri
Defendant to retain the ill-gotten benefits thatyteceived from the Plaintiff and the Class

light of the fact that the Misbranded Food Prodymischased by Plaintiff and the Class was

by

Yy

and

—

the

nit
in

an

illegal product and was not what Defendant represert to be. Thus, it would be unjust and

inequitable for Defendant to retain the benefitwiit restitution to the Plaintiff and the Class

the monies paid to Defendant for Misbranded Foadi&ets.

TWELTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Common Count Of Money Had And Received -
Recovery In Assumpsit of Funds Paid For MisbrandedProducts That Are lllegal To
Sell

240. By definition, a contract is an agreement to doot to do a certain thing. Th
sale and purchase of food items is a type of contiidhe sale of misbranded food products
type of illegal contract specifically prohibited aw.

241. The sale of a misbranded food product is an illegel in California ang
nationwide. Such a sale is expressly prohibitedClajifornia and federal law and the laws

other states.

First Amended Class Action and Representative

Action Complaint for Equitable and Injunctive - 56 - Case No. CV 3:13-CV-4828-TEH
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242. Pursuant to California Civ. Code 8§ 3523 it is aifted legal maxim that “fo

every wrong there is a remedy.” The unlawful sdlensbranded food products that are illegal to

sell or possess as a matter of express statutorpuasuant to Sherman Law 8 110760 — stan

ding

alone without any allegations of deception by Ddtert other than the implicit misrepresenta

ion

that its products are legal to sell or possesangrreview of or reliance on the particular labglin

claims by Plaintiff — gives rise to Plaintiff's hg to recover for the damages suffered as a r
of the illegal sale.

243. The sale of a misbranded product violates the puisiicy of California and th
other forty-nine states.

244, The sale of a misbranded product in California titutes an illegal contract and
void under the laws of California. Such illegalrtsactions are void under common law and
laws of the other states as well.

245. Plaintiff and the Class seek damages and restitutimler the common law af

numerous statutory provisions enacted by Califorméduding but not limited to California Ciy.

Code 8§ 1427, 1428, 1549, 1619, 1621, 1667, 16682,13281-82, 3294, 3300, 3333, 33
3360, 3366-68, 3523, and 3539. These statutoryigioms and the common law establish
right of the Plaintiff and the Class to 1) a reméolyDefendant’s illegal acts, 2) various types
damages and restitution. Moreover, while the Ffbiahd the Class suffered significant inju
and damage to be proved at trial, even if that wetethe case, then pursuant to California ¢
Code § 3360, the law would still allow Plaintiffidh the Class to recoventer alia, nominal
damages due to the Defendant’s illegal conduct.

246. Plaintiff and members of the Class were unawaré¢ tha Misbranded Foo
Products purchased by Plaintiff and members ofllass were misbranded and thus illegal to
or possess. Plaintiff and members of the Class ldmlsed the factual information to indicate
Plaintiff and members of the Class that the salglisbranded Food Products in California or &

other state constituted an illegal act.

247. Plaintiff and members of the Class were justifialgigorant of facts of which the

Defendant was not ignorant.

First Amended Class Action and Representative
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248. Plaintiff and members of the Class were not acged with the statutor
regulations relating to the Defendant’s food bussnand were justified in presuming spe
knowledge by the Defendant of such regulations.

249. Plaintiff and the members of the Class were thusimgari delicto with the
Defendant who had superior knowledge of facts attwithe Plaintiff and members of the Clg
were unaware. Plaintiff and the Class were judtifiagnorant of facts of which the Defend3
was not ignorant, Plaintiff and the Class were aofuainted with the statutory regulatig
relating to the Defendant’'s particular business &taintiff and the Class were justified

presuming special knowledge by the Defendant of segulations.

250. Plaintiffs and the members of the Class are th@iflexhto recover the funds the

expended to purchase the Defendant’s Misbranded Poaducts.

251. The Defendant received and has possession of mibia¢)it obtained from th
illegal sale of misbranded food products to tharfifd and the Class in transactions that w
unlawful, expressly prohibited by statute and vdide money held by Defendant is the props
of Plaintiff and the Class. Defendant is obligedequity and good conscience to restore

Plaintiff and the Class.

First Amended Class Action and Representative

Action Complaint for Equitable and Injunctive -58- Case No. CV 3:13-CV-4828-TEH
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FOURTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Declaratory Judgment That Defendant Violated Fedesl And State Laws Regarding
Mislabeled And Misbranded Food Products

252. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each of the abdegations as if fully set fort
herein.

253. The sale of a misbranded food product is an illegail in California ang
nationwide. Such a sale is expressly prohibitedrégeral and California law as well as the I
of the other states.

254. The sale of a misbranded product violates the pyimiicy of California and th
other 49 states.

255. The sale of a misbranded product in California titutes an illegal contract and
void under Federal law and the laws of Califormd ¢he other states.

256. Plaintiff and other members of the Class who pwsedaDefendant’'s Misbrandg

—

=2

WS

D

S

od

Food Products in California and nationwide furtseek to enjoin such unlawful deceptive and

unconscionable trade practices as described ali@aeh of the Class members who purcha

1Ised

Defendant’'s Misbranded Food Products in Califoama nationwide will be irreparably harmed

unless the unlawful actions of the Defendant aneieed in that Defendant will continue
falsely and misleadingly and unlawfully conceal Hréficial flavors and chemical preservatiy
contained in its Misbranded Food Products andlégally manufacture, distribute and sell t
illegally labeled, misbranded product in violatioh the food and drug laws that prohibit st
actions. Plaintiff and other members of the Clas® \wurchased Defendant’'s Misbranded F
Products in California and nationwide thereforekseeenjoin the manufacture, distribution
sale of any of Defendant’s Misbranded Food ProdurctSalifornia and further request an or¢
granting them injunctive relief ordering appropeiatorrective advertising and appropri
disclosures on the labeling in advertising, marigetand promotion of Defendant’s Misbranc
Food Products in California and nationwide.

257. A case or controversy exists among Plaintiffs, @lass and Defendant as

applicability of the federal and state laws as &fdbdant.
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258. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’sduant, Plaintiff and Plaintif

Class have suffered and will continue to suffer dges.

259. Pursuant to 28 USCS 8§ 2201, 28 USCS § 2202, F.R5Z Rnd California Code

of Civ. Proc. 8§ 1060, Plaintiff, on behalf of Plathand the Class, requests a declaration of s
and duties with respect to Defendant, and an Oetgwining Defendant from continuing
market, advertise, distribute, and sell Misbrandgzbd Products in the unlawful manr

described herein; and ordering Defendant to engagerrective action.

260. Absent such injunctive relief Defendant will contento illegally manufacture

distribute and sell mislabeled and misbranded fo@diucts to the detriment of consumers in

state of California and nationwide.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury of theiaims.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf af others similarly situated, and

behalf of the general public, pray for judgmentiageDefendant as follows:

A. For an order certifying this case as a natimta$s action, and also a separate
distinct California class action and appointingiftiff and their counsel to represent each Clas

B. For an order awarding all relief deemed appaipriand proper by the Col
pursuant to Cal. Civ. Code § 1780;

C. For an order requiring Defendant to immediatagse and desist from selling
Misbranded Food Products listed in violation of jamjoining Defendant from continuing
market, advertise, distribute, and sell these ptsdim the unlawful manner described herein;

ordering Defendant to engage in corrective action;

D. For all equitable remedies available pursuar@al. Civ. Code § 1782;
E. For an order awarding attorneys’ fees and gosts

F. For an order awarding punitive damages;

G. For an order awarding pre-and post-judgmeetast; and

First Amended Class Action and Representative

Action Complaint for Equitable and Injunctive -60- Case No. CV 3:13-CV-4828-TEH

yht
(o

er

14

the

and
S

irt

its
to

and

Relief



© 00 N o o -~ w N Pk

N N N N N DN DN NN R R R R R R R R Rp R
0o N o 0N WN P O ©OW 0o N O o hN WwN B O

Case3:13-cv-04828-TEH Document23 Filed12/20/13 Page61 of 71

H. For an order providing such further relietlais Court deems proper.
Dated: Decembe 2C, 2013. Respectfully submitte
/s/ D'Juana Parks S

D’Juana Parks (pro hac vice)

PROVOST % UMPHREY LAW FIRM, LLP
490 Park St.

Beaumont, TX 77701

Telephone: (409) 835-6000

Fax: (409) 813-8647

dpatks@pulf.com

/s/ Ben F. Pierce Gc¢

Ben. F. Pierce Gore (SBN 128515)
PRATT & ASSOCIATES

1901 S. Bascom Avenue, Suite 350
Campbell, CA 95008

Telephone: (408) 429-6506

Fax: (408) 369-0752
pgore@prattattorneys.com

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that I have on December 20, 2013, filed and served through the Court’s ECF

system a true and correct copy of the foregoing.

/s/ D’[uana Parks
D’Juana Parks (pro hac vice)

First Amended Class Action and Representative
Action Complaint for Equitable and Injunctive
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| ymount Per Serving
| gorlcs 140 _Calories from Fat 20
R TR R % Daily Value*
Pialfat2g 4%
Sat Fat 1.5g e
Trans Fat Og B |
Gholesterol 10mg 4y d
sodium 125mg 5%
Total Carbohydrate 20g 7%
Sugars 20g
Protein 11g
BRI e L
Vitamin A 10% e Vitamin C 4%
Vitamin D 25% e Calcium 30% e Iron 0%
. | Percent Daily Values (DV) are based on a 2,000
_Calorie diet.

- INGREDIENTS: PASTEURIZED CULTURED ORGANIC LOWFAT
ORGANIC NONFAT MILK. ORGANIC CANE JUICE, ORGANIC

:ﬁacn JUICE CONCENTRATE. ORGANIC ANATTO EXTRACT,
MINAPA WITATE, VITAMIN D3. CONTAINS MILK

BRI ne A

SEssEss= |
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Cultured Milk
Smoothie

\bomegranate). acal

~ withother natural flavors
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4 lrans Fat Og 0%
i‘; Cholesterol 10mg 4%
- | Sodium 125mg 5% |
}g | Total Carbohydrate 209 7% i‘
D:etary Fiber Og |
Sugars 209 L S ‘
Protein 11g |
b o R R R

Vutamm A 10% e Vitamin C 4%

Vutamm D 25% e Calcium 30% e lron 0%

*Percent Daily Values (DV) are based on a 2,000
calorie diet.

INGREDIENTS: PASTEURIZED CULTURED ORGANIC LOWFAT
MILK, ORGANIC NON FAT MILK, ORGANIC CANE JUICE, ORGANIC
POMEGRANATE FLAVOR, ORGANIC ACAI FLAVOR, NATURAL
FLAVORS, ORGANIC BEET POWDER (FOR COLOR), VITAMIN A

PALMITATE, VITAMIN D3. CONTAINS MILK

GRADE A »
KEEP
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;Jldﬂ“ 140

votal Fat 2g

caone Jiet

b
L
By PV y— » - oen o w
‘X\: - W - : : \
e’ e oels

e ORGANIC LOWFAT on
" AT T o - - - - S S — -
WLE URGANL NONRET LS. RGN CAME JUICE DRGANC D
- 4N - W WAL N e e aomw .o . ——— -
SASPEERRY JUICE CONCENTSATT. DRGANIC RED BEET JUIcE

.
. A

FOR COLOR. WITAMIN 4 3900 1TF 10TAMN D hw

CONTANS WK
GRADE A I

REFRIGERATED ==

PLEASE

M

© 2011, LIFEWAY FOODS INC

MORTON GROVE IL 60053

PLANT #1711

CERTIFIED ORGANIC BY ORE GON TILTH
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2 iy g‘r’M. #

Exhibit 4
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AY

RIS

hydrate 20g
fﬂ{ 3 i LT

13/
b1 7L A

protein | 19

.min A 10% « Vitamin C 4%
im30% e lron OCr 'Vlta”‘ n D3 25%

L

=
-

o

MUENTS PASTEURIZED CULTURED LOWF
NONFAT MILK, EVAPORATED CANE JUICS
'~4.‘.%E?3' JUICE CONCENT RATE, NATURA|
AVOR! "p BEET JUICE FOR COLOR. VITAMIN
"VITAMIN D3. CONTAINS MILX
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S & Active
Kefir Cultures

Exhibit 5
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¢ ( » .
“e “Aa N\
e

. Yoedde. We 1‘”\V U e
o7 and r8GH and is (,M?;“\\;

Nutrltlon Facts'
Serving Size 1 cup (240mL)
Servings Per Container About 4

Amount Per Serving
Calories 150 Calories from Fat 0

Total Fat Og
Sat Fat Og
Trans Fat Og

| Cholesterol 5mg

Sodium 125mg
Total Carbohydrate 279

| Sugars 279
| Protein 11g

| Vitamin A 10% e Vitamin C 4%
f Vitamin D 25% e Calcium 30% e iron 0%

|
[ *Percent Daily Values (DV) are based on a 2,000
| calorie diet.

INGREDIENTS: PASTEURIZED CULTURED NONFAT
MILK, EVAPORATED CANE JUICE, RASPBERRY JUICE
CONCENTRATE, NATURAL FLAVORS, RED BEET JUICE
FOR COLOR, VITAMIN A PALMITATE Vlm

CONTAINS MILK




